Environment and Neighbourhood Committee
1 February 2018, 7.30 pm at the
Civic Offices, St Nicholas Way, Sutton SM1 1EA



To all members of the Environment and Neighbourhood Committee:Chair:
Vice-Chair:
Councillors:

Councillor Jill Whitehead
Councillor Manuel Abellan
Richard Marston, Steve Penneck, Nighat Piracha, Paul Wingfield,
Hanna Zuchowska, Patrick McManus and Tony Shields
Councillor Ruth Dombey (ex-Officio)

Substitutes:

Councillors Joyce Melican, Jason Reynolds, Tim Crowley and
Neil Garratt

This is a Council meeting held in public. Additional representations are at the invitation
of the Chair of the Committee. If you are a relevant organisation and you wish to
submit representations on a proposal contained within the reports to this agenda
please submit a request via Committee Services three working days before the
meeting date.
The council allows and welcomes any recording, photographing or filming of the
proceedings of a council meeting or use of social media by any member of the public,
media or councillor subject to it focusing on, and not disrupting, the meeting. Mobile
devices can interfere with the wireless microphones and induction loop, and if that is
the case the Chair may require that such devices are turned off. In order to facilitate
the recording of meetings, members of the public or media are encouraged to contact
committeeservices@sutton.gov.uk in advance of the meeting.
This meeting will be recorded and made available on the Council’s website.
PLEASE NOTE: Any decision taken at this meeting does not become definitive until
10am on the third working day after the meeting. Any four members of the Council
may notify the Chief Executive by then if they require a decision to be reviewed by the
appropriate committee at its next meeting. Please contact the Committee Services
representative shown on the front page for further information.
Niall Bolger
Chief Executive
Friday, 19 January 2018

Enquiries to: Charles Yankiah, Committee Services Officer Tel.: 020 8770 4990,
Email: committeeservices@sutton.gov.uk

Copies of reports are available in large print on request

AGENDA
1.

Welcome and introductions

2.

Apologies for absence and notifications of substitutes

3.

Declarations of Interests

4.

Minutes of last meetings

3 - 12

To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meetings held on 1
November and 23 November 2017.
5.

Draft Cultural Framework for Sutton

13 - 24

This report provides information gathered, as a result of the engagement
helped to inform the framework which will progress to the drafting of a Cultural
Framework for Sutton.

6.

Heritage Lottery Fund Projects

25 - 32

This report sets out the issues, changes and progress of the following Heritage
Lottery Fund (HLF) projects:




7.

Beddington Park HLF
Whitehall HLF
Glass Plate Negatives

Local Implementation Plan Allocation 2018/19

33 - 50

This report outlines Transport for London’s (TfL’s) funding settlement to the
Council for Local Implementation Plan (LIP) funding in 2018/19. A description
of TfL’s transport related programmes is given and how schemes were
selected to be put forward for funding.

8.

Sutton Planned Maintenance Programme

51 - 58

This report provides information relating to the Council’s corporate objective of
providing a safe and sustainable highway network for businesses, residents
and visitors, considerable investment in these heavily used highway assets is
required to maintain them in a serviceable condition.

9.

Review of Environment, Housing and Regeneration Fees and
Charges for 2018/19
This report seeks approval following a review of fees and charges for various
Environment, Housing and Regeneration services and provides details of
existing charges and proposed increases for services.

2

59 - 108

10.

References from Council Committees and other bodies

11.

Any urgent items brought forward at the direction of the Chair

3

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 1

Agenda Annex

CIVIC OFFICES, SUTTON
GROUND FLOOR MEETING ROOMS
FIRE PRECAUTIONS
If there is a FIRE in the building the fire alarm will sound. Leave the building
immediately by the most direct route, either back through reception or the fire exit
into Lower Square. Take your coat and any bags with you. Assemble in the car
park in front of the Holiday Inn.

Toilet

Toilet
Room 1

Toilet

Toilet

Reception

Room
5

Room
4

Fire
Exit

Room
2

Room
3

Entrance
Lower Square

Exit

Holiday Inn
Car Park

Page 2

Agenda Annex

Reminder – Declarations of Interests
Members should consider the following interests and whether they have any they
should declare.
Disclosable Pecuniary Interests
Where you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in any business of the Authority at
this meeting and you have either declared it beforehand in the Register of Members’
Interests or to the Monitoring Officer for entry in the Register you must state at this
meeting that you have such an interest and then withdraw from the room or chamber
where the meeting is being held whilst that business is considered.
Where you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in any business of the Authority at
this meeting and have not previously declared it you must declare the nature of that
interest at this meeting and then withdraw from the room or chamber where the
meeting is being held whilst that business is considered.
Other Pecuniary and Non-Pecuniary Interests
Where you have any other pecuniary or non-pecuniary interest in any business at
this meeting you must declare that interest, but may continue to speak and vote on
the matter. However, if the interest is one which a member of the public, with
knowledge of the relevant facts, would reasonably regard as so significant that it is
likely to prejudice your judgement of the public interest then you should declare the
interest and withdraw from the room or chamber where the meeting is being held
whilst that business is considered.
Further information on these matters can be found in the Council's Code of Conduct
and Constitution. If you are in any doubt as to whether you have an interest you
should seek advice before the committee meeting from Alexa Coates.
If, during the course of the committee meeting, you consider you may have an
interest you should always declare it.

Page 3

Agenda Item 4

Environment and Neighbourhood Committee
1 November 2017

ENVIRONMENT AND NEIGHBOURHOOD COMMITTEE
1 November 2017 at 7.30 pm
MEMBERS:

9.

Councillor Jill Whitehead (Chair), Councillor Nighat Piracha (Vice
Chair) and Councillors Manuel Abellan, Richard Marston, Patrick
McManus, Steve Penneck, Tony Shields, Paul Wingfield and
Hanna Zuchowska.

WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS

The Chair welcomed all those present.
10.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND NOTIFICATIONS OF SUBSTITUTES

Apologies were received from Councillor Adrian Davey.
11.

MINUTES OF LAST MEETING

The minutes of the last meeting held on the 22 June 2017 were agreed and signed
as a correct record by the Chair.
12.

DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS

The following declarations of interest were declared:
Item 5 - Councillor Steve Penneck, non-pecuniary, by virtue of his employment.
Item 6 - Councillor Richard Marston, non-pecuniary, as a volunteer
Item 7 - Councillor Jill Whitehead, non-pecuniary, as A Friend of Grove Park and
Councillor Richard Marston, non-pecuniary, as a Friend of the Woodland Trust and
as a Tree Champion for London Borough of Sutton.
13.

OUTCOME OF SCRUTINY COMMITTEE FINDINGS INTO THE NEW
WASTE CONTRACT

The Chair thanked the Scrutiny Committee and the Task and Finish Group for their hard
work and proposed that the Committee should accept all 27 recommendations, and that the
report should help partnering Boroughs to implement the changes, and also enable London
Borough of Sutton (LBS) and the South London Waste Partnership to monitor progress.
The Chair pointed out that the recycling rate had now reached over 50%, which was one of
the best in London, and that this meant less being sent to expensive landfill, and so savings
were being made. She did recognise that much better preparation was needed in the run up

1

Agenda Item 4

Page 4

Environment and Neighbourhood Committee
1 November 2017
to service change, but that it had been difficult to deliver such a large service change with
much fewer resources at a time of austerity. The Council was working very hard to put
things right, which was why the Scrutiny Committee had been set up, and proposed to act
on all its recommendations. A lot of progress was already being made, and this was the
number one priority.
The Chair invited Councillor Tony Shields to comment on the Scrutiny report from the
Opposition point of view, and he highlighted the following –
 Local residents were not consulted and were misinformed about the project;
 Collections were still erratic for some local residents; and
 Local residents should be compensated for repeated missed collections
The Chair then invited the Chair of Scrutiny, Councillor Ali to comment and she highlighted
the following  The Task and Finish Group worked hard including officers;
 The report reflected all contributions made;
 The Recommendations were valid and she asked that the committee take them
forward for future actions, monitoring and review; and
 That there were lessons to be learnt for partners entering the SLWP contract, and for
future contracts procured by the Council and its partners.
Matt Clubb, Assistant Director of Environment Commissioning, presented the report
including the management response relating to each of the four main themes (ICT and
Communication, Risk Management, Member Engagement and Staff Engagement), and the
action plan covering the strategic and operational recommendations.
Members were pleased with the work being done to progress the recommendations, and
thanked the Scrutiny Committee and officers for their work, but identified ongoing issues
relating to the flats project and the need to find a way to consult with local residents that was
permissible under procurement rules. Members also identified a number of lessons to be
learnt for future projects and were of the view that the action plan, following approval at this
Committee, needed to be implemented quickly with a clear statement of actions and
deadlines for completion.
The Committee proposed the following should be included in the Action Plan:

1. A date for completion of visits and actions under the Flats Project be decided upon.
2. It should propose to the SLWP that the terms of reference of the Joint Waste
Committee should be extended to include waste collection as well as waste disposal
3. A toolkit/guide providing information on service standards, and the respective
responsibilities of the Council/SLWP/Veolia, be produced initially for members by the
end of December 2017, and then a similar guide for local residents to go on the
Council’s website.
4. The Strategy & Resources Committee be asked to look at risk culture and the
effectiveness of high level risk management across the Council.
5. The Council should be asked to review its current interpretation of the purdah rules,
which limits the nature and extent of communications during election periods.

2

Page 5

Agenda Item 4

Environment and Neighbourhood Committee
1 November 2017
Matt Clubb informed the Committee that the flats project continues to be a priority and
Veolia has already identified additional resources for this. Improvements were also being
made to the ICT system and processes, relating to how calls were logged and acted upon,
with significant learning being put in place for the other Boroughs of the SLWP.
RESOLVED: that the Environment and Neighbourhood Committee:

1. Accept all the recommendations of the Scrutiny Committee.
2. Agree the Management response in Appendix B.
3. Agree to receive a report taking forward the Action Plan in 12 months time and the
following items be included in the Action Plan a. A date to be agreed with officers for the Flat Project to be completed.
b. Consideration be given to review of the Terms of Reference for the Joint
Waste Committee (JWC).
c. A toolkit/Guide be produced for members by December 2017 relating to the
service standards, and roles and responsibilities, to be followed by a similar
guide for local residents about the services.
d. A report be produced for the Strategy and Resources Committee relating to
the issues raised regarding Risk Management across the organisation.
e. A request be made to the Chief Executive’s office to review the Purdah rules
for elected members.

14.

LIBRARIES VOLUNTEER PILOT

Jan Underhill, Assistant Director, People Services Directorate presented the report.
Members were of the view that the Libraries Volunteer project had been a success and
thanked the library service and the team. Members thought that the approach was very
professional and it should be rolled out to other libraries and cultural/heritage centres
besides the pilot sites, and also to other departments of the council such as the Parks
Department, where volunteers were highly valued, and where service benefits could be
gained.
Jan Underhill informed the Committee that the service was looking into a volunteer portal on
the main Council website for volunteers to register online and there was an opportunity to
recognise the number of volunteers interested in other areas e.g. gardening. She also stated
that volunteers added real value and should be approached in a professional manner and
built into the core business, identifying and applying their particular skills.
RESOLVED: that the Environment and Neighbourhood Committee:

1. Agree to roll out an enhanced Volunteer offer across the whole of the Libraries,
Heritage and Arts Service led by the libraries Volunteer Officer taking into account
learning gained from the volunteer pilot regarding recruitment, marketing and
retention of volunteers.

3

Agenda Item 4

Page 6

Environment and Neighbourhood Committee
1 November 2017

2. Note that the Libraries Heritage and Arts Service will continue to grow opportunities
for volunteering across the libraries and heritage network with a specific focus upon
volunteer opportunities for young people in particular.

15.

PROPOSED APPROACH TO PREPARING A PARKS STRATEGY

Mark Dalzell, Head of Neighbourhood Services, presented the report, and he informed the
Committee that this was an update on the last strategy which was produced in 2007. The
new strategy would review progress, develop the offer to residents and consider
opportunities. The report set out the suggested approach to undertake the Parks Strategy
Review and develop a new strategy. Members proposed that there should be a Parks and
Open Spaces Strategy, to take a broader view, and accord with the Mayor of London's new
draft Environmental Strategy.
The Chair welcomed the report and stated that it was very timely, given that the Mayor of
London wanted to make the whole of London a National Park City. The Parks Strategy
would be looking at key areas such as use of volunteers and Friends groups, health and
well-being, enjoying an active lifestyle and encouraging visitors to come to the parks from
within the Borough and wider afield.
Key local and regional bodies would be consulted during the strategy review, and research
would be undertaken to examine demand for and use of green spaces, identifying trends.
Issues such as access to, and quality of green spaces in some areas of the borough would
be looked at to see how these could be improved. It would also be looking at how parks
could contribute to the local economy through local community events. The opportunities for
further HLF bids (as per Beddington Park) would be considered, along with other sources of
potential funding.
Mark Dalzell reassured the Committee that LBS was committed to maintaining the quality of
its parks and that the parks strategy was in the context of the Local Plan which strongly
supports maintaining the quality of the open space and creating open spaces.
RESOLVED: that
The Environment and Neighbourhood Committee:

1. Approve the process and timetable for the Parks and Open Space Strategy and
review as set out in this report.

2. Approve a member Task and Finish group to meet twice to discuss issues in more
detail before proposals are brought back to Committee for decision as set out in this
report. Members to include a. Councillor Tony Shields
b. Councillor Richard Marston

4

Page 7

Agenda Item 4

Environment and Neighbourhood Committee
1 November 2017

16.

ANY URGENT ITEMS BROUGHT FORWARD AT THE DIRECTION OF THE
CHAIR

There were no urgent items.
17.

DATE OF NEXT MEETING

The next meeting will be held on 23 November 2017 at the Civic Offices.

The meeting ended at 9.17 pm
Chair:
Date:

5

Agenda Item 4

Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 9

Agenda Item 4

Environment and Neighbourhood Committee
23 November 2017

ENVIRONMENT AND NEIGHBOURHOOD COMMITTEE
23 November 2017 at 7.30 pm
MEMBERS:

18.

Councillor Jill Whitehead (Chair) and Councillors Nighat Piracha,
Richard Marston, Patrick McManus, Steve Penneck, Paul
Wingfield and Hanna Zuchowska.

WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS

The Chair welcomed all those present.
19.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND NOTIFICATIONS OF SUBSTITUTES

Apologies were received from Councillor Manuel Abellan with Councillor Joyce
Melican attending as substitute and Councillor Adrian Davey.
20.

MINUTES OF LAST MEETING

The draft minutes were unavailable at the time of publication.
21.

DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS

No declarations of interest were declared.
22.

ULTRA LOW EMISSION VEHICLES (ULEV) POLICY

Warren Shadbolt, Assistant Director, Safer and Stronger Communities introduced
the report relating to Ultra-Low Emission Vehicles (ULEV) in Sutton and proposed
that the Committee consider and adopt the recommendations.
The Chair made reference to the item on the agenda being very timely as it was
included in the Draft Mayor’s Strategy and was also included in the Chancellor’s
budget speech.
Ian Baker, Team Leader - Parking and Sustainable Transport then presented the
report relating to Ultra-Low Emission Vehicles (ULEV) in Sutton and highlighted the
following 




The objectives of the report
The context in light of the Draft Mayor’s Transport Strategy and the Borough
Supporting the ULEV delivery plan for London
Provision for future uptake
1

Agenda Item 4

Page 10

Environment and Neighbourhood Committee
23 November 2017

 Emerging themes
 The Council’s role - it was agreed that the Council should be Scheme Partner
rather than an Operator, so that the cost of installation and management of
charging points would be borne by the Scheme Operator. As a Scheme
Partner, the Council would control the siting of charging points.
Members were in agreement that the policy was timely but that further consideration
should be given to the restrictions on the electric car market, battery range
limitations, possible future trial areas, accessing the relevant funding sources and
inclusion of electric bicycles in the policy.
It was reported that some boroughs were developing electric charging policies
together with a lamp column replacement scheme to utilise existing infrastructures.
However, it was possible that this technology could become outdated as well as
being expensive to provide other than in trial areas. The Council also needed to see
what the private sector would provide in terms of new fast and rapid charging
technology e.g. petrol station companies.
Members discussed how lessons could be learned from not only other boroughs but
other countries that were already advanced in installation and usage for both onstreet and off-street charging points. How to set fees for the use of charging points
using public spaces was also discussed.
Ian Baker informed the committee that the national grid had already given
assurances regarding the resilience of the electricity supply, although there were
fears remaining regarding future capacity and ability to meet demand. Additional
research had been undertaken by Transport for London (TfL) on these issues and
was referenced in the report.
Warren Shadbolt commented that the current lamp-column replacement scheme is
funded by the borough and there was no current intention to include charging points
in the scheme. He also explained that there was no plan to start charging residents
for off-street parking spaces that included electric chargers at the moment, but will
monitor the capacity and potential costs of lost income in the future.
RESOLVED: that the Environment and Neighbourhood Committee:
1. Accept the findings of the report and the council’s proposed role in facilitating
development of a ULEV network in Sutton.
2. Approve the new ULEV policy as set out in the report.
3. Delegate authority to the Strategic Director, Environment, Housing and
Regeneration, in consultation with the chair, Environment and Neighbourhood

2

Page 11

Agenda Item 4

Environment and Neighbourhood Committee
23 November 2017

Committee to bid for funding and arrange subsequent installation where
appropriate of ULEV infrastructure.
4. Review the Policy in 12 months.
23.

POLICY ON ABANDONED VEHICLES

David Kingstone, Licensing and Environmental Compliance Team Leader presented
the report which set out how regulatory services process and deal with reports of
vehicles abandoned in public open spaces.
Members were in agreement with the policy and were pleased with the procedures
and processes that would be adopted. The Policy had already been recently
adopted by our Shared Highways Service Partner, LB Kingston. However, concern
was raised relating to the lack of a legal definition of abandoned vehicles.
Roy Douglas, Lead Officer, Street Compliance informed the Committee that the
policies and procedures were tried and tested and took into account the liability for
the council, and the requirements of the Highways Act and other legislation. Fixed
penalty notices could be issued to anyone abandoning a vehicle. In excess of 90%
of each vehicle was recycled helping to ensure proper disposal. Caravans were
included within the abandoned vehicles legislation and action would be taken if
certain criteria were met.
RESOLVED: that the Environment and Neighbourhood Committee:
1. Adopt the Policy on Abandoned Vehicles for implementation on 1 December
2017.
24.

ANY URGENT ITEMS BROUGHT FORWARD AT THE DIRECTION OF THE
CHAIR

There were no urgent items.
25.

DATE OF NEXT MEETING

The next meeting will be held on 1 February 2018 at the Civic Offices.

The meeting ended at 8.45 pm
Chair:
Date:

3

Agenda Item 4

Page 12

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 13

Report to:

Agenda Item 5

Report title:

Environment and Neighbourhood
Committee
A Cultural Framework for Sutton

Report from:

Jan Underhill, Assistant Director for Wellbeing, People Directorate

Ward/Areas affected:
Chair of Committee/Lead
Member:
Author(s)/Contact
Number(s):

Borough Wide
Cllr Jill Whitehead

Corporate Plan Priorities:

Open/Exempt:
Signed:

Date:

1 February 2018

Andrew Clark, Promoting Independence and Wellbeing Manager,
0208 770 5245
Madeline Barratt, Head of Libraries, Heritage and Arts, 0208 770 4755
Sophia Harvey, Development Manager, 0208 770 4763
● An Open Council
● A Green Council
● A Fair Council
● A Smart Council
Open
Date:
16 January 2018

1.

Summary

1.1

Targeted engagement sessions took place with creative communities in Sutton during October
2017, led by consultants who have experience in open space events with a cultural focus. The
information gathered as a result of the engagement helped to inform the work which will
progress to the drafting of a Cultural Framework for Sutton.

1.2

The Framework will be predicated on the role of the Council as a facilitator and enabler rather
than a provider of cultural events. The brief to consultants supporting this work is to draw
together an overview of the Sutton cultural landscape and therefore: identify what Sutton
currently offers; what key developments within communities are possible, what could happen
to take the cutlural scene in Sutton forward and identify what would be needed to effect
change. This scoping has resulted in the production of a first draft framework and a roadmap
for the future, for Member consideration. A final framework would include more detail on
options for the medium and longer term and potential sources of funding. A critical element of
the draft Framework will be a description of how local communities and groups might come
together to further develop the creativity and growing diversity of talent that exists within
Sutton. The Framework will consider cultural activity in the widest sense, including
opportunities that the town centre Masterplan, regeneration and the London Cancer Hub will
bring and the heritage and potential visitor offer, as well as recognising the wealth of arts
activity already taking place within communities.

Agenda Item 5

2.

Page 14

Recommendations
The Environment and Neighbourhood Committee is recommended to:

2.1

Agree the outline framework and roadmap as the direction of travel, at Appendix A.

2.2

Agree to the recommendation for a further draft Framework to be brought back to Environment
and Neighbourhoods Committee in Summer 2018. This would be followed by gathering further
views from residents, through the consultation Hub.

3.

Background

3.1

The Council last examined the cultural offer from Sutton in 2007 when a Strategic Framework
for Cultural Services was presented to Full Council for adoption. In the intervening years,
austerity and other changes affecting local government have taken place. In Sutton, Libraries
Heritage and Arts were brought together in 2015 under the People Directorate of the Council,
the Town Centre Masterplan has been developed, the Sutton Plan has been launched, the
London Cancer Hub is progressing and Sutton has been awarded Heritage Action Zone
status, the only London borough to achieve this. The Libraries, Heritage and Arts service has
undergone a transformation to modernise and reflect the needs and aspirations of both today’s
and tomorrow’s local residents. The financial landscape has also changed dramatically and
Councils, including Sutton, have moved from being providers in many instances to
commissioners. The potential for the Council to invest in local arts and creativity is limited and
development is dependant upon bidding successfully for available grants, London wide.
However, a wealth of independant and local community creative activity takes place within
Sutton, such as local festivals, the Wallington music festival, Carshalton Artists Open Studios
to name but a few.

3.2

It was felt that the time was right to undertake a review of both the planning and built
environment and local provision, to draw these together and develop a new framework for
Culture for Sutton. This Framework would make some recommendations about how local
creative industries might come together to raise their profile and ensure that the rich and
growing diversity of Sutton is reflected and represented in the creative landscape.

3.3

A Culural Framework for Sutton will bring an opportunity to widen the purview of ‘culture’ to
ensure that all elements gain a voice, such as food, music, dance, art, and performance
generally and to encourage inclusivity and diversity.

3.4

A Cultural Framework for Sutton would also provide the basis for accessing potential funding,
such as grants from Arts Council England, and for Sutton to be considered in the next round of
the London Borough of Culture.

Page 15

4.
4.1

Agenda Item 5

Issues
The Council is developing a modern library service which includes a refurbished, central library
which will become more of a community hub with new technology available, modernised
spaces for study, for children and families and rentable business spaces. The heritage
buildings in Sutton are also well used by residents and visitors and Whitehall will re-open fully
in early Summer 2018, with a transformed offer for visitors and schools. It needs to be
understood however that it is not the role of any Council to determine what the cutural offer of
a place should be. This comes from the people who live and work there. Additionally, the
Council has limited resources to invest further in the creative arts but can play an important
part by encouraging communities to come together to develop the cultural offer and identity of
the borough and to facilitate and promote a range of diverse, creative activity. This chimes with
the Sutton Plan approach, which is about partners working together for the benefit of Suttton
and all its residents.

4.2

There is a need for a more joined up approach across the various Council directorates and
between the Council and its wider partners, particularly local businesses, taking the same
approach as the Sutton Plan, if the cultural identity of Sutton is to continue to grow and reflect
the people who live here.

5.

Options Considered

5.1

Do nothing. This means Sutton as a borough may not move forward as a creative destination
and the risk is also that the growing diversity within the Borough is not recognised and
promoted.

5.2

Draft a Cultural Framework for Sutton which identifies opportunities for the future and includes
the role of the Council and wider partners in working with commmunities to facilitate cultural
growth and diversity. This is the recommended option as it will draw in local communities and
encourage them to be part of the wider cultural landscape, connecting with each other and
growing creative networks. It will also clealry identify what the role of the Council as facilitator
and enabler could be and the potential involvement form other partners across the Borough.
The framework presented represents the first phase of this work.

6.

Impacts and Implications

6.1

Financial
None.

Page 16

Agenda Item 5

6.2

Community Cohesion

Identified within the Equalities Impact Assessment, attached as Appendix B. The focus of the
framework and subsequent draft Framework will be to increase community cohesions and
connect with the growing diversity within communities.

7.

Appendices and Background Documents
Appendix

Title

Appendix A

‘A Cultural Framework for Sutton’

Appendix B

Equalities Impact Assessment

Background documents
N/A

Audit Trail
Version

Final

Date: 16 January 2018

Consultation with other officers
Finance

N/A - to be included in phase 2
of the process

N/A

Legal

No

N/A

Equality Impact Assessment
required?

Yes

Completed

Page 17

Agenda
ItemA 5
Appendix

Draft Cultural Framework for Sutton
1.

Definition of Culture

‘Culture’ means different things to different people and for some people it is a term which
means very little. The Department for Culture Media and Sport states in the Culture White
Paper, March 2016, that:
Culture no longer simply means being familiar with a select list of works of art and
architecture, but the accumulated influence of creativity, the arts, museums, galleries,
libraries, archives and heritage upon all our lives. When we talk about our ‘cultural sectors’,
we are referring to an extraordinary network of individuals and organisations, that together
preserve, reflect and promote who we are as a nation, in all our rich diversity.
2.

The ambition for Sutton

The ambition is to highlight, connect and encourage the different arts, cultural and heritage
activity that takes place right across the borough, bringing out the diversity of skills and
interests that exist among the residents of Sutton. The cultural complexion and richness of
a place comes from the people who live and work there, which in turn attracts people to
visit. The population of Sutton is growing and changing and this will influence its cultural
identity. The Sutton Plan is an approach which brings together a wide range of partners
across Sutton to support and enable activity which meets the needs of Sutton residents.
This approach is relevant to developing the cultural offer within Sutton. The Council, like all
the other partners in the borough is keen to play its part in enabling arts in its widest sense
to thrive - music, heritage, food, dance, festivals and other events, big and small scale.
The Council can also contribute by raising the profile of arts and culture with developers
and local businesses so that where new developments take place, cultural opportunities
are considered as a matter of course.
3.

The cultural offer in Sutton today

There are three major strengths for development in Sutton today:
Strength One: Innovation in Libraries
A Library strategy 2015 to 2019 is in place which will modernise the offer to residents
across Sutton, partly through the introduction of new technology and new ways of offering
a flexible Libraries, Heritage and Arts service across the Borough. This includes the
refurbishment of the Central Library which will provide a modern gallery space for
exhibitions and events and new, bookable work spaces where groups can meet..

Agenda Item 5

Page 18

Appendix A

Strength two: Revitalising Heritage
Sutton has a strong commitment to its heritage and the role it will continue to play in the
future. The council itself manages five historic buildings: Honeywood Museum; Little
Holland House; Whitehall Museum; Upper Mill and the Carew Manor dovecote.
Since 2010, organisations in Sutton have secured nearly £6 million of Heritage Lottery
funding. £5.54 million has been raised by the London Borough of Sutton, including two big
restoration grants: £3.26 million for Beddington Park and The Grange Garden and £2
million for the restoration and new interpretation at Whitehall Museum that will reopen in
2018.
The Sutton Town Centre Masterplan places heritage at the heart of the town’s
redevelopment and is the first Heritage Action Zone in London.
Strength 3: An emergent community arts scene
Sutton has an emerging arts scene with considerable community and voluntary activity
taking place including the Wallington music Festival and Carshalton Arts Open Studios.
Smaller groups meet regularly to enjoy their own heritage and culture such as the
Afro-Caribbean Heritage Society. There is a growing body of diverse and creative talent
within the borough and the professional arts and culture sector would benefit from greater
exposure.
4.

What the community said

Five, targeted engagement workshops about culture and heritage took place, across the
Borough, in October 2017, facilitated by an organisation specialising in community
engagement for culture. The summary of points raised from these workshops is set out
below:
➢ The cultural offer is not as diverse or inclusive as it should or could be and there is a
need to celebrate and provide more visibility to what is happening
➢ There is a need to maximise opportunities for external investment and additional
advice and support to do this
➢ There is a need for affordable studio and performing space
➢ Links with schools could be developed e.g. Schools Art exhibition; use of schools’
performance facilities by other groups
➢ There is a strong heritage offering in Sutton

Page 19

Agenda
ItemA 5
Appendix

➢ There is a need for an Arts and Culture Hub

5.

Development opportunities for culture in Sutton

The principle, as referred to earlier, is to take the Sutton Plan approach. Working with all
partners, including communities themselves, to make Sutton a more attractive place to
live, work and play for all age groups, maximising our
potential for cultural development, economic growth and making Sutton a more attractive
place to visit.
Short Term
There is potential to increase and celebrate local diversity through better networking of
groups that are already working actively within the Borough.
New opportunities for people of all ages and backgrounds to meet, share interests and
exhibit will come from the refurbishment of the Central Library.
Medium Term
Work can continue, to support population health and wellbeing through the cultural activity
that is on offer in the Borough such as: helping older people overcome isolation; helping
young people perform better in education and gain more of the skills needed to find work;
helping communities to build their resilience and social capital
Longer Term
Exploit the heritage offer to develop stronger high streets, independent shops, higher
turnover for businesses and draw in more visitors.
The Cancer Hub brings with it an opportunity to develop interdisciplinary arts and
research, attracting skills and talent to Sutton.
Sutton Town Centre will undergo a major overhaul over the next decade, transforming it
into a destination fit for the next 30 years. This brings new opportunities to develop the
Night time economy and to create pop up work spaces in the town centre. An approach
will be taken to encourage developers to consider arts and creative industries in whatever
they do so that every opportunity to support and develop a diverse range of cultural activity
is seized.

Agenda Item 5

6.

Page 20

Appendix A

Some options to increase the scope and pace of change

Increasing the cultural diversity and offer within a place is an organic process and it is led
by the people who live and work there, not by any single organisation or sponsor. From a
Council perspective, as an enabler of cultural development, steps have already been taken
in response to the expressed needs of Sutton residents. These include working with Arts
Network Sutton as a local networking group, with a focus on increasing and connecting the
diverse talents and cultures that are emerging. The modernisation of the Library and
Heritage services has already been mentioned, with the new Central library as one focal
point where the community can come together. The Council will continue to be active in
promoting cultural development and identifying opportunities to work with local
communities to enrich the offer in Sutton.
There are other ways that places have developed their cultural scene. The majority of
these involve investment, such as bringing in a cultural development partner. Arts groups
themselves have been able to lobby and persuade private developers and commercial
businesses to invest in them.
As a Council, funding available to invest directly in arts and cultural activity is limited and
already committed. Connections and bids have been made however to Arts Council
England, the GLA and the Heritage Lottery Fund (HLF) through the Libraries, Heritage and
Arts service. Officers in the Environment, Housing and Regeneration directorate have also
been successful in securing investment from the HLF, the GLA and other bodies to
develop the heritage and cultural offer in Sutton. More opportunities will emerge with the
town centre redevelopment.
A roadmap has been created which sets out some of the current, strategic milestones for
change. It is likely that this roadmap will evolve over time.
The Framework for Cultural development which will be drafted later this year will expand
upon the detail of activity already happening in Sutton and opportunities for further
development.

Page 21

7.

Roadmap to a More Vibrant Cultural Scene in Sutton

Agenda
ItemA 5
Appendix

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 23

Agenda Item 5

Appendix B
A Draft Cultural Framework for Sutton - Equality impact Assessment
January 2018
Please state the service / project your proposal relates to:
The development of a Cultural Framework for Sutton
Lead Officer
Madeline Barratt
Directorate
People
Is this a new policy or a review of an existing policy or service?
The development of a new cultural Framework
What are the aims and purpose of this proposal?
To identify existing cultural provision in Sutton in terms of both creative activity in the widest
sense and how this is supported by the built environment, to identify support networks. To
develop a Cultural Framework for Sutton to outline a way forward for the networks to grow
and creative activity to flourish in the borough.
Which of the geographic areas does this proposal affect?
All areas of LB Sutton
Equality and diversity
Which stakeholder group or groups does this proposal affect?
Opportunities for creative and cultural activities affect all communities in Sutton
Whose needs is the proposal designed to meet?
The proposal is designed to meet the needs of all Sutton residents
What evidence has been collected to inform this proposal?
Targeted engagement sessions took place with creative communities in Sutton during
October 2017, led by consultants who have experience in open space events with a cultural
focus. The information gathered as a result of the engagement helped to inform the draft
framework which will progress to the drafting of a Cultural Framework for Sutton.
What equality-related information, for example through consultation with
stakeholders, has been gathered on this proposal?
Creative communities were specifically invited to the targeted sessions to ensure a balance
of views.
Based on the information you have collated, which equality characteristics may be
affected by this proposal

Agenda Item 5

Page 24
Appendix B

A Draft Cultural Framework for Sutton - Equality impact Assessment
January 2018
Creative and cultural activities have the potential to provide an enhanced quality of life for all
characteristics
Please give further information on how these characteristics may be affected
“We know that arts and culture play an important role in promoting social and economic
goals through local regeneration, attracting tourists, the development of talent and
innovation, improving health and wellbeing, and delivering essential services. These benefits
are ‘instrumental’ because art and culture can be a means to achieve ends beyond the
immediate intrinsic experience and value of the art itself”. 1
What will be done to promote equality of opportunity as part of this proposal?
A cultural Framework for Sutton will of itself promote equality of opportunity for all
communities
Health and Wellbeing
Creative activities positively impact on the physical and mental wellbeing of residents as they
enhance lives, reduce isolation, have the potential to bring different communities together
and encourage both social and artistic skills to develop.

What actions are going to be taken as a result of this EIA to address negative impacts
or previously met unidentified needs?
1. There are no negative impacts

What data monitoring or evaluation activity has been put into place to monitor the
impact of this proposal?
The action plan for implementation of the framework, when drafted, will be monitored on a
regular basis.

1

The Value of Arts and Culture to People and Society - An evidence review. Arts Council England 2014

Page 25

Report to:
Report title:
Report from:

Ward/Areas affected:
Chair of Committee/Lead
Member:
Author(s)/Contact
Number(s):
Corporate Plan Priorities:

Open/Exempt:

Agenda Item 6

Environment and Neighbourhood
Committee
Heritage Lottery Fund (HLF) Projects

Date:

1 February 2018

Mary Morrissey, Strategic Director, Environment, Housing and
Regeneration
Jan Underhill, Assistant Director, People Services Directorate
(Wellbeing)
Borough wide
Councillor Jill Whitehead
Bill Wyatt, Assistant Parks Manager, 020 8770 4674
Jane Allen, Heritage Manager, 020 8770 4622
● An Open Council
● A Green Council
● A Fair Council
● A Smart Council
Open

Signed:

Date:

16 January 2018

Date:

3 January 2018

Mary Morrissey, Strategic Director Environment,
Housing and Regeneration

Jan Underhill - Assistant Director, People
Services Directorate (Wellbeing)

1.

Summary

1.1

In January 2013, Environment and Neighbourhood Committee agreed that eight bids should be
considered for submission to the Heritage Lottery Fund (HLF). After further investigation, four
were deemed viable and submitted to the HLF. On 30 March 2017 Environment and
Neighbourhood Committee received a report and approved works to the projects.

1.2

This report sets out the issues, changes and progress of the following projects:

1.3

Beddington Park HLF - The final stage 2 application for Beddington Park was successfully
submitted to HLF in February 2016 with the approval of Environment and Neighbourhood
Committee.

1.4

Whitehall HLF – The final stage 2 application for Whitehall was successfully submitted to HLF in

Agenda Item 6

Page 26

March 2015 with the approval of full council.
1.5

Glass Plate Negatives - project completed (with a grant of £96,300) and follow up project
funding awarded of £95,000.

2.

Recommendations
The Environment and Neighbourhood Committee is recommended to:
Beddington Park

2.1

To note the progress made on the project and the potential timeline revision due to the silt
drying process.

2.2

Delegate authority to the Strategic Director Environment, Housing and Regeneration to agree
any further adjustments to the Beddington Heritage Lottery Fund project designs.
Whitehall

2.3

To note the revised timeline for the Whitehall project. The museum will reopen in summer 2018
with project activities continuing until 2020.
Glass Plate Negatives

2.4

To note that the phase two project will be completed in September 2018.

3.

Background
Beddington Park

3.1

The Beddington Park HLF Stage two bid was submitted in February 2016 and was successful in
gaining lottery funding of £3,260,400 towards a total project cost (development and delivery) of
£3,835,440.

3.2

As a pilot for ‘Citizen Led Commissioning’, officers continue to engage with stakeholders to gain
an understanding and ownership of the project outcomes. A stakeholder steering group has
been in place since the development stage.

3.3

The project is based on five key themes established in the original commissioning and
consultation; 1) Access safety and Infrastructure, 2) Activities and Events, 3) Wildlife, 4) History,
5) Lakes and Waterways. These have remained at the core of the project and have been
developed to meet stakeholder needs and match the requirements of HLF.
Whitehall

3.4

The Whitehall HLF project was submitted in March 2015 and was successful in gaining
£1,522,300. A contribution required of the Council was £210,000.

3.5

The costs of delivering the capital elements of the project were in excess of initial estimates and
the project team worked closely with HLF and an application for a grant top-up of £367,000 was

Page 27

Agenda Item 6

successful in December 2016, with additional funding from the Council of £138,400 being
provided. Capital works will be completed in the spring of 2018 with the museum reopening in
the summer 2018.
3.6

The Whitehall project will see essential repairs carried out to the listed grade II* structure and a
significant improvement in the accessibility of both the building and services. Physical
accessibility will improve from 15% to 80% of the building. Additionally the activity plan identifies
target audiences including the elderly and those at risk of social isolation, children and families
and small local businesses.

4.

Issues
Beddington Park

4.1

Physical works commenced on site on 4 September 2017 under the main contractor R Durtnell
and Sons Ltd, with a number of specialist sub-contractors carrying out the various works
including, lake works, playground construction, soft and hard landscaping, and building works.

4.2

All works, as set out in the report of 30 March 2017 to Environment and Neighbourhood
Committee, are still as planned. The lake works have progressed well with dredging of the stock
pond and main lake now complete. Soft landscaping is underway as is the work to refurbish and
provide additional equipment in the Children’s playground.

4.3

Work still to take place include the re-profiling and landscaping of the re-formed lake islands,
and the movement of the silt, once dried sufficiently, to the former depot area to create
additional woodland.
Whitehall

4.4

Whitehall closed to the public in April 2016 and the building cleared for construction work to
start.

4.5

The project was delayed when the architectural designs were finalised and the construction
element was tendered. This showed an unanticipated increase in the cost of construction
coupled with restrictions on the use of heavy machinery due to the fragility of the archaeology
on the Whitehall site.

4.6

The project team worked closely with the Heritage Lottery Fund who agreed that an application
could be submitted for an increase to the project grant. This was completed in August 2016 and
in December the project was granted additional funding of £367,000. The increased grant
allowed for the project to go ahead in full with no reduction in specification. The construction
company R. Durtnell and Sons started work on site on 18 January 2017 and are due to
complete in January 2018 when the interior fitout will begin.
Glass Plate Negatives

4.7

The development work on the project showed that a sub £100,000 project would not be
sufficient to achieve all the digitisation and conservation work needed on the collection. The
project was then divided into two phases. The first ‘Past on Glass’ focused on the story of the
photographer and his studio, and the plates showing First World War service men. This project

Agenda Item 6

Page 28

was completed March 2017. The second phase ‘Ordinary Lives, Extraordinary Times’ focussing
on the women in the plates as we approach the centenary of the Representation of the People
Act will be completed September 2018.
5.

Process and Timeframes
Beddington Park

5.1

Final works on site to transport and use the dried silt to landscape the depot area in the northern
woodland belt will be dependent on how quickly the silt dries to a point where it can be used.
This may result in parts of the project being completed in early summer 2018. All other works
are expected to be completed by the end of April 2018.
Whitehall

5.2

With construction at Whitehall now underway, a revised opening date of June 2018 is
anticipated. This will coincide with the 40th anniversary of Whitehall first opening to the public.
Glass Plate Negatives

5.3

Phase two of this project is underway and due to complete in September 2018.

6.

Future Schemes
Nonsuch Park

6.1

Nonsuch Park, which is situated in Ewell, is jointly managed and funded by Epsom and Ewell
Borough Council and the London Borough of Sutton. The Nonsuch Joint Management
Committee (JMC), which comprises councillors from the two boroughs, agreed in principle at its
meeting in November 2016 to progress with an HLF (Heritage Lottery Fund) Parks for People
bid for the park.

6.2

A subsequent report had been expected to be taken forward to the JMC in early 2018 seeking
approval to use identified match funding towards the bid and to progress with the first stage bid;
however, in December 2017, the Heritage Lottery Fund announced that it had ceased its Parks
for People programme with immediate effect, following a reduction in Lottery funding. Parks
funding up to £5 million is still available via the Heritage Grants scheme, however it will be
shared between museums, arts projects, and other heritage projects, which will impact upon the
number of parks projects funded going forward. The final deadline for first stage applications for
Heritage Grants is August 2018.

6.3

Officers are seeking advice from the HLF as to whether the provisional proposals for Nonsuch
Park would fit the criteria of a Heritage Grants bid. The viability of putting together a bid in time
for the final deadline will need to be given further consideration. Officers are assessing the
prospects of making a bid and will be reporting back to the JMC accordingly.

7.

Options Considered
Beddington Park

7.1

No modifications to the project have been necessary during this reporting period.

Page 29

Agenda Item 6

Whitehall
7.3

No modifications to the project have been necessary during this reporting period.
Nature Explorers
No modifications to the project were required.

8.

Impacts and Implications
Financial
Beddington Park and Whitehall

8.1

The budgets for the delivery stage of both Beddington Park and Whitehall have been
incorporated in the capital programme, monitored by Strategy and Resources Committee.
Glass plate Negatives

8.3

In 2013 the Council agreed to match funding of £10,000 which secured grant funding from HLF
of £96,300.

8.4

The phase two application had match funding of £5,000 from existing resources which secured
grant funding from HLF of £95,000.
Legal

8.5

The conditions attached to the HLF Grant will need careful consideration to ensure that the
Council is confident of complying with them and that going forward, the conditions of the Grant
that take effect post receipt of monies will be observed.

8.6

Non–compliance with Grant conditions would mean either that monies would not be
forthcoming, or if in receipt of them, some or all would be repayable. Legal advice will be
sought as and when necessary.
One Planet Living

8.7

This proposal for improvements to Beddington Park support the following One Planet Living
Targets.

8.8

Cutting carbon emissions – The creation of a green travel plan as part of this project will aim to
encourage sustainable travel by highlighting public transport connections. This will support the
‘Sustainable Transport (ST) 3 Priority’ target which aims To ‘Increase the use of sustainable
transport from a 2009/10 - 2011/12 average baseline of: 1% cycling to 2.2% cycling, 28%
walking to 29.6% walking, and 16% public transport to 17.6% by 2017.

8.9

Cutting waste – The works will seek to utilise as much silt from the lake as possible to facilitate
landscaping in the park, and suitable existing pieces of playground equipment will be retained
rather than disposed of needlessly. These actions will support the delivery of Zero Waste (ZW) 6
Priority target of ‘4,000 tonnes of Local Authority collected waste sent to landfill by 2017’.

Agenda Item 6

Page 30

8.10 Valuing our Natural Environment - existing habitats, such as the Carew Manor Wetlands, will be
preserved and enhanced to increase the biodiversity in the park. Extensive flood modelling has
been carried out on new designs for the lake to reduce risk of flooding. The Nature Explorers
Project has enabled families and children to explore areas for nature with greater
independence, reducing staff time and input delivering education.
8.11 Supporting Healthy Communities - The activity plan embodies this aim through active
participation and opportunities for the community to engage with, and celebrate, the park’s open
space and rich heritage. Implementation will contribute towards the Culture & Heritage (CH) 1
Priority measure which records the ‘number of annual volunteer hours for Sutton Library and
Heritage Services.
8.12 The Whitehall project has encompassed sustainability as a core aim of the project. All elements
of One Planet Sutton have been considered in the formulation of the project and this can be
evidenced from the 3 key streams of the project – “knowing, sharing and saving” - “knowing”
involves bringing the heritage of Whitehall to life in the community, “sharing” involves ensuring
all elements of our community are able to experience and benefit from the project. These 2 aims
incorporate the Supporting Healthy Communities, and Supporting the Local Economy themes of
One Planet Sutton. The final aim – “saving” is about ensuring the building is developed and
managed in an environmentally sensitive manner. The project includes a wide variety of energy,
waste and water saving measures, and the preservation and reuse of existing materials and
structures. Exhibitions and activities will feature information on historic food growing and local
sustainable food. In this way the Whitehall project can be described as a One Planet Sutton
showcase project.
Equality Impact Assessment
Beddington Park
8.13 An impact assessment has been completed with the factors covered having been taken into
consideration as part of the activity plan, and through the work already completed to produce
baseline data for an evaluation and monitoring framework document.
8.14 Work to produce the baseline data and activity plan identified areas where there are barriers to
use as well as discrepancies between local demographics and those found on site during visitor
observation studies and surveys. The activity plan aims to rectify this through targeted
information, training, volunteering and events.
Whitehall
8.15 The impact assessment for Whitehall identified the opportunities the project provides to meet
the needs of isolated communities around Cheam. Feedback from organisations offering
support to vulnerable people in the community has shown that Whitehall has potential to offer a
practical resource including a safe meeting place, opportunities for supported volunteering and
useful leisure activity. Whitehall could also become a location for information and advice teams
to engage with residents.
8.16 Feedback from children, families, teachers and children centre staff has shown that Whitehall
has the potential to increase its engagement with young children and families through formal
and informal learning and free or easily affordable school holiday and weekend experiences.

Page 31

Agenda Item 6

The project seeks to take into account the ‘Kids in Museums Manifesto’ in its services.
Encouraging healthy lifestyles and whole family activity through walks, craft events,
intergenerational events and support for museum visitors who may not have experience of
visiting cultural venues have all been identified as developments within the project.
9.

Appendices and Background Documents
Appendix letter

Title

None

Background documents
17 January 2013 Heritage Lottery Fund Grant Application Report
4 March 2013 Heritage Lottery Fund Grant Application Report
26 November 2015 Beddington Park HLF project report Environment and Neighbourhood
Committee

Audit Trail
Version

Final

Date: 3 January 2018

Consultation with other officers
Finance

Yes

Tony Cooke

Legal

No

N/A

Equality Impact Assessment
required?

Yes

Katrina Lloyd

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 33

Report to:
Report title:
Report from:
Ward/Areas affected:
Chair of Committee/Lead
Member:
Author(s)/Contact
Number(s):
Corporate Plan Priorities:

Open/Exempt:
Signed:

Agenda Item 7

Environment and Neighbourhood
Date: 1 February 2018
Committee
Local Implementation Plan Settlement 2018/2019
Mary Morrissey, Strategic Director Environment, Housing &
Regeneration
Boroughwide
Councillor Jill Whitehead
Ian Price, Team Leader Strategy and Commissioning, 020 8547 5934
●
●
●
●
Open

An Open Council
A Green Council
A Fair Council
A Smart Council

Date:

16 January 2018

1.

Summary

1.1

This report outlines Transport for London’s (TfL’s) funding settlement to the Council for Local
Implementation Plan (LIP) funding in 2018/19. A description of TfL’s transport related
programmes is given and how schemes were selected to be put forward for funding.

1.2

The details of the specific indicative allocations for individual schemes are listed in Appendix A
and described in the report. The Committee are specifically requested to note that the allocation
detailed is lower that that bid for, and the report suggests how this reduction in the LIP
settlement might be managed.

1.3

TfL have advised that their current Business Plan has been prepared against the background of
very challenging economic circumstances; their revenue grant from central Government has
reduced by £700m from 2018/19 onwards. As a consequence, TfL are not able to provide
funding as indicated in the initial 2018/19 Annual Spending Submission Guidance.

1.4

Furthermore, TfL have also advised that funding for the Principal Road Maintenance, between
2018/19 and 2019/20 has been paused, which presents a further shortfall in funding.

1.5

The revised settlement is significant enough to require a review of the LIP programme that has
been previously consulted on. Such a review is ongoing and is focused towards identifying and
delivering fewer, larger, more impactful schemes.

Agenda Item 7

Page 34

1.6

The revised settlement will also impact on the capacity of the Highways and Transport function,
which is part of the Environment Service shared with the Royal Borough of Kingston Council. A
review of the resources requirement to support the delivery of a smaller capital programme is
ongoing, with the likelihood that excess capacity will also need to be removed.

2.

Recommendations
The Environment and Neighbourhood Committee is recommended to:

2.1

Note the changes in the LIP Settlement, from those originally indicated in the Annual Spending
Submission Guidance papers issued by TfL in June 2017, and the impact the revised settlement
on the delivery of the programme previously consulted.

2.2

Agree that in light of the revised and reduced settlement from TfL, the schemes and measures
as given in Appendix A provide the basis for the LIP work programme for 2018/2019, noting that
the scheme list will need to be amended from that previously supported by the six Local
Committees in Summer 2017, and recommended changes are set out in paragraph 4.5.

2.3

Note that further reductions will be needed to bring the work programme in line with the
settlement.

2.4

Agree to incur capital expenditure of £890,400 for the capital schemes identified in the LIP for
Corridors and Neighbourhoods, £100,000 for Local LIP funding and £765,000 for Beddington
North Major Scheme so that the projects can proceed. A sum of £169,000 for various revenue
initiatives which has been approved for 2018/19 and is included in the revenue estimates.

2.5

Note the specific funding circumstances attached to the profiling of the Beddington Major
Scheme, as set out in paragraphs 3.9 to 3.10.

2.6

Authorise the Assistant Director Environment, Housing and Regeneration (Safer and Stronger
Communities) to take all necessary steps to implement the schemes, including commencing any
necessary statutory consultations.

3.

Background

3.1

TfL have advised all authorities across London that their current Business Plan has been
prepared against the background of very challenging economic circumstances. The settlement
received from central Government has been reduced by, on average, £700m a year, for the
financial year 2018/19 onwards.

3.2

As such, TfL are not able to provide authorities with the funding as previously indicated in the
Annual Spending Submission Guidance for the LIP Corridors, Neighbourhoods and Supporting
measures programme. Due to the pressures on TfL’s revenue budgets, the annual LIP formula
funding will be reduced from £73.8 million to £63 million in 2018/19, and will remain at this level
for the life of the Business Plan.

Page 35

Agenda Item 7

3.3

A subsequent reduction in funding has been applied to each borough based on the current LIP
formula.

3.4

The borough’s revised LIP allocation for 2018/19 will be £1,159.4k, reduced from the £1,241k
advised in May 2017. TfL have offered to work with the borough to prepare an amended
2018/19 LIP programmes and a revised Annual Spending Submission, to be agreed and
submitted by the end of January 2018.

3.5

In spite of these financial pressures, TfL recognises the desire for boroughs to have more say
on funding for local priorities, and have confirmed that the LTF (Local Transport Fund) previously withdrawn - has been reinstated. Authorities will therefore continue to receive £100k
per annum to allocate on its discretion, either on local priorities or to supplement the reductions
in the Corridors, Neighbourhoods and Supporting measures programme. This may require
revision to the current local allocation process through Local Committees.

3.6

As highlighted in paragraph 1.6, the funding implications associated with the reduction in LIP
funding will have a knock on effect on the ability of the Shared Service to deliver the capital
programme, as the allocation provides a fee charging element, where resources are allocated
depending on the level of fee that can be recharged. Historically, LIP submissions have included
a high number of projects with relatively low scheme costs aimed at dealing with site specific
issues, and experience has shown that these projects are resource heavy.

3.7

The new Mayors Transport Strategy (MTS) has a number of key points, which will focus on the
Healthy Streets agenda and seeking to introduce schemes that will deliver significant and area
wide improvements to pedestrian and cycling infrastructure. It is expected that this will mean
boroughs submitting fewer but larger schemes through the Corridors, Neighbourhoods and
Supporting Measures programme, and it is anticipated that this will make the resource
management element of the captial programme more resilient.

3.8

The net impact, therefore, of the funding changes within the Corridors, Neighbourhoods and
Supporting measures stream in Sutton is a 6.6% reduction of £81,600 from £1,241,000 to
£1,159,400.

3.9

TfL have also advised that while there is no reduction in the overall level of funding for Major
Schemes over the life of the Business Plan, there has been a change in the profile of the budget
over the period.

3.10 To this end, TfL have confirmed arrangements made in regard to the Beddington North Major
Scheme, as agreed with LB Sutton, which detailed an amended funding profile, where LB
Sutton have undertaken to finance the project through the 2018/19 financial year for £765k. TfL
have undertaken to reimburse the borough in the 2019/20 financial year.
3.11 Further funding reductions have been advised on the Principal Road Maintenance. Between
2018/19 and 2019/20 investment in proactive planned renewals on both the Borough Principal
Road Network (BPRN) and TfL Road Network (TLRN) has been paused and the Council will

Agenda Item 7

Page 36

therefore receive no allocation in 2018/19. A pan-London allocation of circa £3m per annum for
the next two years has been retained for the BPRN to continue condition surveys and deal with
high priority sites. TfL, working with the boroughs through the London Technical Advisors Group
(LoTAG), will agree how this allocation will be targeted to the highest priority sections of road.
3.12 Borough bridge strengthening activities are also reduced. Works already on-site or committed
works will be progressed along with high priority projects, for example Hammersmith Bridge.
4.

Issues
Funding Submission Consultation

4.1

A list of proposals was produced by ‘rolling forward’ the current LIP programme, whilst taking
account both of ongoing work, and proposals put forward by members/residents during the year.

4.2

At the time of preparing the LIP submission report for Local Committees in Summer 2017,
advice had been received from TfL that their officers should proceed on a ‘business as usual’
basis, wherby LIP funding would continue in line with the formulaic method for allocating
budgets to the boroughs. There were, however, discussions at the time which suggested that
due to funding pressures the Local Transport Funding may be lost going forwards. Without
confirmation of that, Local Committees still produced a list of potential schemes for 2018/19.

5.

Options Considered

5.1

In light of the changes to the TFL settlement made in December, there is a need to revisit the
programme (see Appendix A) previously consulted on. Such a review is ongoing, and the focus
of the new Mayor’s Transport Strategy and the Healthy Streets Agenda is that boroughs should
focus on identifying and delivering fewer, larger, more impactful schemes, with a much higher
average allocation, if the existing programme cannot accommodate the funding reduction.

5.2

Officers have had an ongoing dialogue with colleagues from TfL, the latest being on 4 January
2018, to discuss the impacts of the funding reduction, and how it is anticipated that this funding
shortfall would be best managed. TfL advised that the boroughs would responsible for
re-profiling the scheme submission list, and it was noted that whilst there were a significant
number of small schemes on the current list, if those met the Healthy Streets outcomes the
schemes could remain on this years programme but boroughs may want to consider spreading
schemes across more than 1 year to ease delivery.

5.3

Projects identified as being considered for re-profiling in the Appendix A list are:●

Brighton Road/Cotswold Road junction improvements - feasibility work has not
progressed as quickly as anticipated, so unlikely that scheme delivery would be
complete in 2018/19, and deferring build into 2019/20 will allow works to be mainly
programmed over the summer holiday period. Suggested budget re-profile in 2018/19
from £125,000 down to £60,000.

Page 37

●

6.

Agenda Item 7

Green Wrythe Lane, between Groveside Close and Culvers Way - scheme is already
split over two years, so balance of work will be shifted into 2019/20. Suggested budget
re-profile in 2018/19 from £35,000 down to £18,400; and 2019/20 allocation increase
by £16,600 to complete scheme.

Impacts and Implications
Financial

6.1

TfL provides financial support for borough schemes intended to improve the quality, safety and
accessibility of the local travelling environment. In December 2017, the Mayor announced that
for 2018/19 Sutton will receive £1,159,400 funding from TfL, based on an LIP Funding
Submission by Sutton, to tackle a range of issues from reducing road casualties to supporting
town centre regeneration and sustainable transport.

6.2

TfL also confirmed the re-profile of the Beddington North Major Scheme in their letter in
November 2017 which agreed that the council will meet a sum of £765k in 2018/19 from it’s own
resources. A further sum of £50k (which is the balance of the remaining scheme cost) is
included in 2019/20 and TfL will therefore reimburse the council for the full £815k in 2019/20.

6.3

The revised settlement will also impact on the capacity of the Highways and Transport function,
which is part of the Environment Service shared with the Royal Borough of Kingston council. A
proportion of LIP funding is used to fund LIP programme design, commissioning and delivery of
schemes. With both authorities now receiving a lower, revised settlement, the service is, as a
result, reviewing its resource requirements for the 18/19 programme, with the likelihood that
excess capacity will need to be removed.
Legal

6.4

Under section 159 of the Greater London Authority Act 1999, TfL may give financial assistance
to any body or person in respect of expenditure incurred or to be incurred by that body or
person in doing anything which, in the opinion of TfL, is conducive to the provision of safe,
integrated, efficient and economic transport facilities or services to, from or within Greater
London. The financial assistance that may be given to any London authority under this section
includes in particular assistance in respect of any expenditure incurred, or to be incurred, by the
authority in discharging any function of a highway authority or traffic authority.).

6.5

Any scheme or measures implemented by the Council, as Highway or Traffic Authority would be
undertaken in accordance with the relevant legislation governing the procedures including,
where appropriate, consultation and the publication of the requisite notice.

Page 38

Agenda Item 7

7.

Appendices and Background Documents
Appendix letter

Title

A

Pre-Announcement LIP Scheme Proposals for 2018/19

B

Equality Impact Assessment

Background documents
None

Audit Trail
Version

Final

Date: 4 January 2018

Consultation with other officers
Finance

Yes

Tony Cooke

Legal

Yes

David Fellows

Equality Impact Assessment
required?

Yes

Completed
(See Appendix B)

Appendix A

Scheme

Description

Statement of Need and Comments

Indicative
Funding

Local
Committee

Issues raised by local Members and
residents concerning safety and
speeding issues.

65,000

C&C

Woodmansterne
Road (B278)

Safety scheme/traffic calming measures
in the section between Oakhurst Rise
and Woodmansterne Lane

Concerns regarding speed and safety
along this road raised

20,000

C&C

Beeches Avenue

Safety scheme/pedestrian crossing
facilities by Crichton Road and Stanley
Park Road roundabout

Issues raised by local Members and
residents concerning safety and
speeding issues

47,000

C&C

Rotherfield Road
/Talbot Road

Safety scheme/traffic calming measures

Area is close to Carshalton village and
is often used a cut through, and
speeding traffic is a local concern.

35,000

C&C

School have raised local concerns
regarding pedestrian routes in the
vicinity of the school, which will be
addressed.

40,000

B&W

Collingwood
School,
Springfield Road

Safer Routes to school scheme

Agenda Item 7

Safety scheme/traffic calming measures
to be investigated and implemented.
Project will also involve working with local
schools

Page 39

Warnham Court
Road/Sussex
Road/Crichton
Road/Stanley
Park Road

Safety scheme / pedestrian crossing
facility

Petition identified need for improved
crossing facilities outside school
entrance. Funding to complete
scheme works started in 17/18.

15,000

B&W

Shotfield

Safety scheme / pedestrian crossing
facility

A local petition has identified an area
where pedestrian facilities need
improving to address concerns.

30,000

B&W

Foresters
Primary School,
Redford Avenue

Safer routes to school scheme

Measures required to improve
pedestrian routes, and address safety
concerns outside the school environs.

45,000

B&W

Tharp Road

Traffic management / one way system

Measures required to address
congestion and safety issues related to
the introduction of a one way section
of road.

30,000

B&W

Plough Lane
area

Safety scheme / traffic calming measures

Feasibility and design only,
construction phased for 2019/20.

15,000

B&W

Brighton
Road/Cotswold
Road junction
(Belmont)

Construction works for highway
improvements scheme

Major scheme is being developed in
2017/18, and subject to appropriate
consultation and scheme development
construction works to commence in
2018/19, with completion programmed
for 2019/20

125,000

SSCB

£60,000
adjusted

Page 40

The Chase

Agenda Item 7

Appendix A

Appendix A
There have been complaints from
residents about the high speed of
traffic in this section of the road.

65,000

SSCB

Grange Road /
Worcester Road
Area 20mph
zone

Phase 2 (Sutton South) Complete the
zone started in 2017/18

Proposals agreed during the scheme
development in 2017/18, and those not
completed will be delivered in 18/19.

80,000

SSCB

Church Hill Road
20mph zone
Phase 2

Complete the zone started in 2017/18.
Speed reducing measures may be
necessary in some roads.

Proposals agreed during the scheme
development in 2017/18, and those not
completed will be delivered in 18/19.

60,000

CNWP

Central Road

Accident reduction scheme. Analyse
accidents and implement improvements.
Co-ordinate with other initiatives such as
Bus Priority.

Corridor has been identified as
requiring investigations on a number of
fronts, as journey time delays on
buses and wider congestion issues
contribute to local concerns.

100,000

CNWP

Sutton Common
Road (Stonecot)

Improvements to the zebra crossing
outside Glenthorne High School

Existing facility will be upgraded,
looking at crossing widths and
illumination of the feature.

20,000

CNWP

Windsor Avenue
/ Henley Avenue
area (Stonecot)

Measures to reduce the volume and
speed of through traffic.

Feasibility and design only,
construction phased for 2019/20.

20,000

CNWP
Agenda Item 7

Road safety and speed investigations.

Page 41

Banstead Road
South between
Downs Road and
Chiltern Road

Kimpton
Industrial Estate
(Stonecot) .

Measures to improve the flow of traffic
round the industrial estate.

Measures include widening at
junctions & parking restrictions, and
contribute to bus journey reliability

25,000

CNWP

Green Wrythe
Lane / Waltham
Road Zebra
Crossing

Investigation of proposals following a
petition from pupils at Carshalton Boys
School.

Site assessment and feasibility
investigations for a new zebra crossing
on a busy route to/from school.

20,000

SHTWWV

Green Wrythe
Lane – Between
Groveside Road
& Culvers
Avenue

There are a cluster of personal injury
accidents along Green Wrythe Lane.
Measures to be identified and
implemented

Road safety investigation, to assess
site specific locations and any suitable
measures to address safety concerns.

35,000

SHTWWV

Wrythe Lane –
Between
Welbeck Road &
St Helier Hospital

There are a cluster of personal injury
accidents along Wrythe Lane. Measures
to be identified and implemented

Road safety investigation, to assess
site specific locations and any suitable
measures to address safety concerns.

20,000

SHTWWV

London Road /
Goat Road

Third worst accident spot in the borough.
(Falls on the borough boundary with
Merton so will require joint borough
working) - Design only

Site investigations and feasibility study
on options appraisal. Liaison with LB
Merton.

20,000

SHTWWV

Rosehill/Rosehill
Avenue Junction
alteration.

There is a redundant short section of
one-way which causes confusion
amongst drivers.

Extend the one-way on Rosehill Ave
upto Rosehill. Junction alterations and
signage changes. The existing short

15,000

SHTWWV

Agenda Item 7

Appendix A

18,400

Page 42

adjusted

Appendix A
section of two-way is confusing for
drivers and it is not necessary.
Speed reduction measures and improved
crossing facilities on Collingwood Road,
improved signage, e.g. of speed and
weight restrictions etc.

Measures will be investigated as part
of a Safer Route to Westbourne
Primary school.

35,000

SLC

Frederick Road
and Alberta
Avenue between
A217 - Gander
Green Lane.

Speed reduction measures, junction
treatments, traffic calming

Road acts as cut through linking to the
main road, A217 although primarily
residential in nature. Options to
address speeding and safety related
concerns will be investigated.

20,000

SLC

High Street /
Oakhill Road
Junction.

Junction improvement - There is a cluster
of personal injury accidents and
resident’s complaints regarding difficulty
negotiating the junction.

Road safety investigation, to assess
site specific locations and any suitable
measures to address safety concerns.

20,000

SLC

Page 43

Collingwood
Road – Between
A217 and Bushy
Road

Future Investigation and Monitoring
Monitoring of previously implemented
schemes

To investigate accident records, usage,
mode share etc.

£25,000

Investigations

To investigate future projects in line with
the Sustainable Transport Strategy &
Cycling Delivery Strategy

Schemes investigated will be brought
to the future LIP submissions

£25,000

Cycle Training

Agenda Item 7

Monitoring

Cycle Training

For education of cycling across the
borough

To encourage Cycling and increasing
mode share for sustainable travel

£92,000

Scheme purpose to increase
sustainable travel mode share

£7,000

Road Safety Education
Road Safety
Training

Education across the borough for
Kerbcraft Training, Theatre in Education,
Green Cross Code, Young Driver
Training and P2W Training

Agenda Item 7

Appendix A

Workplace Travel Plan Initiatives
Review of Travel Plans, monitoring,
promotion of initiatives and the
implementation of small measures

To encourage sustainable travel and
increase sustainable travel mode
share

£11,000

Business
Engagement
Events

Business Engagement Events including
Dr Bike, Cycle confidence training
promotion, travel advisors, Smart Water
and incentives

To encourage sustainable travel and
increase sustainable travel mode
share

£11,000

Marketing and events to encourage new
cyclists

To encourage Cycling and increasing
mode share for sustainable travel.

£3,000

Cycling Promotion
Cycle Promotion

Sustainable Transport Promotion

Page 44

Support to
businesses
within the
borough

Appendix A
Publicity

Marketing materials to promote
sustainable travel. Personal travel packs
to encourage use of smarter modes

To encourage sustainable travel and
increase sustainable travel mode
share

£6,000

Road Shows

To attend existing events in the borough
such as the Environmental Fair and other
school community events

To encourage sustainable travel and
increase sustainable travel mode
share

£6,000

To encourage sustainable travel and
increase sustainable travel mode
share

£33,000

Sub total

£1,241,000

School Travel Plans
School Travel
Plan Reviews

Review School Travel Plans, seminars,
STARS training, school grants etc.

Page 45
Agenda Item 7

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 47

Agenda Item 7

Appendix B

Equality Impact Assessment
Section 1: Aims and demographics
a. Is this a new policy or a review of an existing policy or service?
This is a review of an existing Policy

b. What are the aims and purpose of this proposal?
The aim of this proposal is to advise members of Environment and Neighbourhood
Committee of the level of LIP Funding Settlement from TfL for 2018/19, and to seek release
of funds to commence on the Work Programme.
c. Which of the geographic areas does this proposal affect? (insert any specific
wards or state all borough)
The proposal affects the whole borough.

Section 2: Equality and diversity
a. Which stakeholder group or groups does this proposal affect? (e.g. Staff at

LBS, residents, third and voluntary sector)
It will affect all residents in the borough, as the funding provides opportunities to improve the
highway network across the borough. LBS staff, as well as all other road users will also be
affected by the proposal.
b. Whose needs is the proposal designed to meet? (e.g. include any specific

impact on protected group members e.g. older people, disabled people, BME)
The proposals are designed to meet the needs of all residents, and the design process for
schemes gives consideration to the needs of vulnerable road users, which includes those
with impairments and mobility issues. Different funding streams are also included to cover a
cross section of age related highway matters.
c.

What evidence has been collected to inform this proposal?

The schemes included in the proposal cover a range of projects, some of which are evidence
based on accident/collision data and highway condition surveys;; others based on highway
issues raised by residents and Members; and schemes based on input from educational
establishments.

Agenda Item 7

Page 48

d. What equality-related information, for example through consultation with

stakeholders, has been gathered on this proposal? (Indicate the type of
information gathered and ensure you address ethnicity, disability, gender, age,
religion and sexual orientation. You can also include people with caring
responsibilities. Attach a summary or refer to where the evidence is held.)
No formal or informal consultation with potential applicants (i.e. resident householders) has
been carried out regarding these proposals.
e. In what ways might the proposal impact positively or negatively on some

groups of people? (Please ensure you address ethnicity, disability, gender, age,
religion and sexual orientation. You can also include people with caring
responsibilities.)
It is anticipated that the proposals will have a positive impact on all groups of people, as we
are actively seeking to deal with existing highway related problems.
It is not considered that the proposals will negatively impact on any users of the public
highway.
f.

What will be done to promote equality of opportunity as part of this proposal?

All schemes within the proposal will consider equality issues as part of any design or
development process, and where appropriate schemes will be subject to accessibility and
safety audit processes.
Section 3: Health and well being
Please note: Data from the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment can be used to fill in this
section of the form, which can be accessed here: http://www.suttonjsna.org.uk/
a. In what way could this proposal positively or negatively impact on the physical
and/or mental wellbeing of residents? If there is a negative impact what action
will be taken to mitigate this? What evidence has been or will be collected?
It is envisaged that the proposals will have a positive impact on the wider public highway
environment, by improving road safety, seeking to improve traffic flow and reduce congestion
-associated with that contribute to air quality improvements.
No specific negative impacts have been identified.
b. In what way could this proposal have a positive or negative impact on an
individual’s opportunity to improve their own health and wellbeing? If there is a
negative impact what action will be taken to mitigate this? What evidence has
or will be collected?
It is anticipated that the proposal will provide the opportunity to encourage road users to
consider the use of alternative modes of travel, particularly by cycling and walking and this
aligns with the council’s Sustainable Transport Strategy.
The council monitor the overall modal travel splits within the borough, and this will continue to
allow an assessment to be made on the level of mode shift.

Page 49

Agenda Item 7

c. In what way could this proposal positively or negatively impact
disproportionally on the health and wellbeing of one or more different
communities? (e.g. improve the lives and health of a vulnerable group such as
people with learning disabilities). If there is a negative impact what action will
be taken to mitigate this?
It is not envisaged that the proposal will impact on any specific group any more or less. If
schemes that are introduced are found to have had a negative impact, amendments will be
considered to address those impacts.

Section 4: Local Economy
Is this section relevant to your proposal?

Yes

a. Will this proposal affect the local job market, local business or local inward
investment to the borough?
It is anticipated that the proposal will improve the functioning of the highway network, and
hence offer improved travel conditions to all road users.
b. Does this proposal impact upon employment opportunities for residents in
Sutton?
See answer to 4.a

c. Does this proposal provide opportunities for the third sector organisations and
or local businesses in Sutton?
See answer to 4.a

Section 5: Sustainability
Is this section relevant to your proposal?

Yes

Yes

No

a. Is this proposal sustainable medium or long term for improving services in
Sutton?
.
It is anticipated that the proposal will provide both medium and long term improvements for
services in the borough, and is line with the Local Plan.
b. Is this proposal a cost – effective use of resources?
The proposal is a cost-effective use of resource, as these schemes are considered important
to the effective operation of the borough from a transport perspective.

c. If applicable; does this proposal have any impact on the environment and One
Planet Living Principles in Sutton? (e.g. does it impact upon reducing waste,
encourage the use of carbon neutral modes of transport conserve the
environment or encourage the efficient use of water? Please see guidance for
further details if this is relevant to your policy or review).

Agenda Item 7

Page 50

The proposal includes schemes and proposals that promote the use of sustainable modes of
travel, and are in line with the aspirations of the Sustainable Transport Strategy.

Section 6: Actions and Publications

1. Please rate the overall impact identified through this assessment with the
level of action that needs to be taken (delete as appropriate):

a. What actions are going to be taken as a result of this IIA to address negative

impacts or previously met unidentified needs?
As previously stated, no negative impacts are envisaged in implementing this new policy.
b. What data monitoring or evaluation activity has been put into place to monitor

the impact of this proposal?
As previously stated the borough monitor the modal travel choices across the borough and
will continue to do so. The ongoing assessment and monitoring of accident/collision data
remains a high priority. Officers will be assessing ways of monitoring air quality conditions on
the busier parts of the network, along with options to address the conditions.
c.

Sign- off ( Your completed IIA must be signed off by a Head of Service)

Warren Shadbolt: Assistant Director Environment, Housing and Regeneration, (Safer and
Stronger Communities)

Page 51

Report to:
Report title:
Report from:
Ward/Areas affected:
Chair of Committee/Lead
Member:
Author(s)/Contact
Number(s):
Corporate Plan Priorities:
Open/Exempt:
Signed:

Agenda Item 8

Environment and Neighbourhood
Date: 1 February 2018
Committee
Sutton Planned Maintenance Programme 2018/19
Mary Morrissey, Strategic Director, Environment Housing and
Regeneration
Borough Wide
Councillor Jill Whitehead
Olga Gilevska, Highways Contracts and Delivery Team Leader,
Highways and Transport, 020 8547 5600 ext 4409
A Green Council
Open
Date:
16 January 2018

1.

Summary

1.1

Valued at over £725m, Sutton Council’s highway network is the most visible, used and valuable
physical asset the Council is responsible for. To meet the Council’s corporate objective of
providing a safe and sustainable highway network for businesses, residents and visitors,
considerable investment in these heavily used highway assets is required to maintain them in a
serviceable condition. Consequently the highway maintenance needs have been reviewed, as
set out in Appendices A and B and prioritised on a Borough wide basis.

2.

Recommendations

2.1

The Environment and Neighbourhood Committee is recommended to:

2.2

Agree to incur capital expenditure of up to £1.230m proposed highway maintenance programme
for footways and carriageways for 2018/19 so that the schedule of works identified under
Appendices A and B can be undertaken.

2.3

Provide the Strategic Director for Environment, Housing and Regeneration delegated authority
make in-year changes to the prioritised planned highway maintenance programme to facilitate
effective delivery and to respond in-year to emerging priorities or unforeseen events.

3.

Background

3.1

London Borough of Sutton’s public highway network is the most expensive asset the Council
owns. It is valued at £725 million and has a major significance to borough residents,
communities and businesses.

3.2

A provisional planned highway maintenance programme is prepared each year from Council
highways inspectors’ safety condition reports and road condition survey(s). This is coupled with

Agenda Item 8

Page 52

the level of capital funding available and allows for a list of borough public highway locations
most need of planned maintenance to be put into a works programme.
3.3

All carriageway and footway locations on the provisional planned maintenance list are prioritised
using a weighting score condition assessment, which takes account the overall condition and
usage of each location and incorporates feedback received from councillors and members of
the public. Within this process, principal roads, bus routes and cycleways receive a higher
priority, as do footways in shopping areas and those close to hospitals, schools and care
homes.

3.4

Up untill now, Sutton’s annual highway investment programme used Sutton capital funding to
fund the planned highways maintenance programme for local roads. External capital funding,
provided by Transport for London (TfL), was used to deliver principal (strategic) road
maintenance. Between 2018/19 and 2019/20 TfL investment in proactive planned renewals on
both the Borough Principal Road Network (BPRN) and TfL Road Network (TLRN) has been
paused and the council will therefore receive no TFL allocation in 2018/19. A London-wide
allocation of circa £3m per annum for the next two years has been retained by TfL for the BPRN
to continue condition surveys and deal with high priority sites. TfL, working with the boroughs
through the London Technical Advisors Group (LoTAG), will agree how this allocation will be
targeted to the highest priority sections of road across London. Local Implementation plan (LIP)
financial settlement is detailed within the report under item 6 of the agenda “LIP funding
settlement 2018-19”.

3.5

As a result, there are insufficient funds available to meet the full need of repair to the borough’s
public highway network. Officers have prepared the prioritised list set out in the Appendices.

3.6

The prioritised list of roads is sent to all public utility companies for consultation as required
under the New Roads and Street Works Act (NRSWA) 1991. This allows the utilities to give
notice of their future planned works and provides an opportunity for schemes to be programmed
in to minimise the level of any disruption to the local community.

3.7

Local residents, and transport providers are informed of pending works through an advance
letter drop in the weeks leading up to planned maintenance works taking place. The term
contractor also affixes notices to lamp columns in the days preceding the works to provide
information to highway users, and the bus operators then advise passengers on any diversions
required.

4.

Issues

4.1

A selection of planned maintenance methods are used to carry out the works. The choice of the
most appropriate method to be used is dictated by the existing condition and construction of the
highway. Methods range from using materials where a full reconstruction is required (most
expensive option) to thinner surface overlays (cheapest option). The option chosen is designed
to give the greatest longevity to the road at the most economical cost.

5.

Impacts and Implications
Financial

Page 53

5.1

Agenda Item 8

The capital funding proposal is as follows and includes staff costs and contingencies for all
schemes in 2018 / 2019:
Carriageways £’000

Footways £’000

Total £’000

718

512

1,230

Agreement is needed by the Environment and Neighbourhood Committee to incur capital
expenditure for the Planned Highway and Pavement Maintenance Programme so that the
schedule of works identified under Appendices A and B can be undertaken during 2018/19
financial year.
Legal
5.2

The Highway Authority has a duty under Section 41 of the Highways Act 1980 to maintain the
highways for which they are responsible.

5.3

If a person believes he/she has suffered damage as a result of a failure to maintain the highway,
the Highways Authority under Section 58 of the Highways Act 1980 has a defence if it proves
that this “had taken such care as in all the circumstances was reasonably required to secure that
the part of the highway to which the action relates was not dangerous for traffic”.

5.4

Any claim brought against the Council, alleging damage resulting from a breach of their ‘duty’ is
subject to statutory defence under section 58 of The Highway Act 1980. This provides defence
in proof that The Highway Authority had taken such reasonable care as to secure that the
relevant part of the public highway was not dangerous for highway users. In considering the
defence the court is required to have regard to the following matters:(a) The character of the highway, and the traffic reasonably to be expected to use it.
(b) The standard of maintenance appropriate for a highway of that character and used by such
traffic.
(c) The state of repair in which a reasonable person would have expected to find the highway.
(d) Whether the Highway Authority knew, or could have reasonably have been expected to know
that the condition of the relevant highway was likely to cause danger to users of it. By
undertaking a programme of maintenance work prioritised in accordance with the criteria set out
above, and having had regard to Sections 41 and 58 of The Highway Act 1980, the Authority
seeks to perform its statutory duty, and reduce the potential liability for insurance claims.
Community (including safety, localism, public health).

5.5

Letter drops to affected residents/businesses will be carried out by our Contractor 10 working
days in advance of the works commencing, advising them of the arrangements and timescale.

5.6

Undertaking planned highway works improves public highway user safety and takes into
consideration the need for facilities for disabled people, pedestrians, cyclists and public
transport users.

Agenda Item 8

Page 54

5.7

This aligns with the Council’s corporate plan objective as ‘A Green Council’ to improve the
borough’s transport network infrastructure to support the local economy and meet the current
and future needs of the borough by delivering a programme of works to maintain and repair the
borough’s roads and pavements.

5.8

If the highway network is allowed to deteriorate there will be considerable congestion caused by
increased amounts of responsive maintenance. Therefore officers develop prioritised list of
proposed footway and carriageway interventions in order to maintain our assets in a safe and
serviceable condition.

5.9

Maintenance of the Council’s highway assets inevitably entails some impact to the network and
all efforts will be made to give advance notification of implications for local residents and the
general public where their travel arrangements may be disrupted. Officers give careful attention
to the planning and coordination of all highways works to minimise disruption and congestion.

5.10 Prior to footway schemes commencing, residents will be given the opportunity to apply for a new
vehicle crossover or extend an existing one, if these requests meet current policies, these works
will be undertaken during the footway improvement scheme. This approach has proved
beneficial in the past to all parties and is critical to ensure the integrity of the new footway is
protected and does not incur any vehicle overrun to access properties.
5.11 Within Conservation areas, every effort is made to ensure that materials match the existing.
The Council’s contractor is required to use vehicles and plant that comply with the European
Union’s requirements. When work has to be carried out at night residents are informed at least
two weeks in advance.
5.12 Works will be scheduled to commence as early in the new financial year as possible. However,
the actual timing of scheme works will be determined and coordinated with other activities, such
as statutory undertakers’ planned works, school holidays and other relevant events as part of
the Council’s network management duties.
5.13 Prolonged periods of very wet, cold or hot weather can have a significant influence on the works
programme and priorities. Additionally, works by statutory undertakers may result in some
schemes needing to be delayed to a later year. In this event, it is proposed that the next road(s)
on the prioritised list would be brought forward for implementation.
Risk
5.14 The failure to fulfil our statutory duty as the Highway Authority would have legal and financial
implications and be potentially harmful to the reputation of the Council.
5.15 The procurement of new highways and street lighting works term contracts is progressing with a
commencing date of the 1 April 2018.

Page 55

6.

Agenda Item 8

Appendices and Background Documents
Appendix

Title

A

List of carriageways to be resurfaced.

B

List of footways to be resurfaced.

Background documents
None

Audit Trail
Version

Final

Date: 17 January 2018

Finance

Yes

Tony Cooke

Legal

Yes

David Fellows

Equality Impact Assessment
required?

No

N/A

Consultation with other officers

Agenda Item 8

Page 56

Appendix A
List of carriageways to be resurfaced
Road

Ward

THE CHASE

Beddington North/South

WHOLE ROAD

STAVORDALE ROAD

St Helier

WHOLE ROAD

SHORTS ROAD

Carshalton Central

WHOLE ROAD

SUTTON COMMON ROAD

Stonecot

REIGATE AVENUE TO RIDGE ROAD

MILFORD GROVE

Sutton Central

WHOLE ROAD

MEADOW WALK

Wallington North

WHOLE ROAD

PLOUGH LANE

Beddington South

FROM FORRESTERS DRIVE TO
BOROUGH BOUNDARY

MONTROSE GARDENS
WHOLE ROAD

Sutton North

Page 57

Agenda Item 8

Appendix B
List of footways to be resurfaced
Road

Ward

ALBION ROAD

Sutton South

FROM LANGLEY PARK ROAD TO
PROSPECT COURT (NORTH END)

CHARMINSTER ROAD

Worcester Park

WHOLE ROAD

WOODBINE LANE

Nonsuch/Worcester Park

WHOLE ROAD

WAVERLEY WAY (SM5 3LQ)

Carshalton South and Clockhouse

WHOLE ROAD

WEST AVENUE, WALLINGTON

Beddington North

WHOLE ROAD

THE CHASE
CENTRAL AVENUE TO STAFFORD ROAD
(NORTH SIDE)

Beddington North/South

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 59

Report to:
Report title:
Report from:
Ward/Areas affected:
Chair of Committee/Lead
Member:
Author(s)/Contact
Number(s):
Corporate Plan Priorities:

Open/Exempt:
Signed:

Agenda Item 9

Environment and Neighbourhoods
Date: 1 February 2018
Committee
Review of Environment, Housing and Regeneration Fees and Charges
for 2018/19
Mary Morrissey, Strategic Director of Environment, Housing and
Regeneration
Borough Wide
Councillor Jill Whitehead
Sharon King-Holmes , Commissioning Officer, 0208 770 5316
●
●
●
●
Open

An Open Council
A Green Council
A Fair Council
A Smart Council
Date:

16 January 2018

1.

Summary

1.1

This report seeks approval following a review of fees and charges for various Environment,
Housing and Regeneration services. The report provides details of existing charges and
proposed increases for services.

2.

Recommendations
The Environment and Neighbourhoods Committee is recommended to:

2.1

Agree to the variation in charges for the following services - Bulky Waste, Trade Waste,
Registration Services, Sports and Leisure Management, Parks and Cemeteries, Biodiversity,
Sutton Life Centre, Libraries, Heritage & Art Services, Regulatory Services and Shared
Highways and Transport.

3.

Background

3.1

The Environment, Housing and Regeneration Directorate review the fees and charges applied
to its services on an annual basis for agreed charges to be levied from 1 April 2018.

4.

Issues

4.1

The main aim of this review was to:

Agenda Item 9

Page 60

4.1.1 Ensure that all costs associated with the provision of services are fully recovered.
4.1.2 Ensure any known increases in contract costs, inflation and other costs are recovered from
service users.
4.1.3 Address the base income budget position for individual services.
4.2

The following services are proposing charges either below or above inflation (assumed at 2%);
the rationale for changes is listed in the sections below.
Bulky Waste including fridges (Appendix A)

4.3

It is proposed that the fees and charges for bulky waste increase by 1.6% for 1-3 items and 2%
for 4-6 items. These charges are included in the contract with Veolia, which started in April
2017.
Trade Waste (Appendix B)

4.4

It is proposed that the majority of fees and charges for Trade Waste are increased by 2% in line
with the predicted levels of inflation, although this can vary slightly from 2% when rounding
numbers up or down. The risk associated with the costs and income from this service sits with
Veolia (who took over this work in April 2017 as part of the new waste collection contract) with a
guaranteed income to Sutton Council as part of the arrangement.
Registration Services (Appendix C)

4.5

Fees and charges have been increased to bring them into line with other Registration Districts
for ceremonies both in house and for attending outside venues.
The extension to Russettings (Garden Room) is expected to be in use from April 2018 and has
fees set for marriage ceremonies based on benchmarking against other marriage rooms of
similar capacity. Fees for conferencing have been set at a competitive prices using
benchmarking of a range of similar local venues. It is also intended to offer a small amount of
food choices, which will be at cost with a 10% markup for administration. The Joint
Naturalisation and Passport checking service remains at the same fee for 2018 /19 as other
districts are at a slightly lower fee.
Sports and Leisure Management (Appendix D)

4.6

Sports and Leisure Management (SLM) operate and manage Westcroft, Cheam, David Weir
and Phoenix Leisure Centres on behalf of the Council. Contractually fees are set by the
provider, SLM, and is not a Member decision. The overall average increase in prices is 3.05%,
in line with CPI, although there are some variations to this as detailed in Appendix D. Income
collected is retained by SLM.

Page 61

Agenda Item 9

Parks and Cemeteries (Appendix E)
It is proposed that the majority of fees and charges for Parks and Cemeteries are increased by
2% in line with the predicted levels of inflation, although this can vary slightly from 2% when
rounding numbers up or down. The 2% increase is not applied to the charge for purchase of
keys which is remaining at £20 for ease of handling, or the cost to supply and plant a tree
(including the cost of maintaining it for two years) which has increased from £250 to £295 to
reflect the current cost of undertaking this work.
The membership fees for the three bowls clubs not under a lease arrangement is subject to
negotiation in the coming months. These clubs need a minimum number of membership to
remain viable, and it is proposed to reduce the fee to retain existing members and to attract new
members. The service was subject to a price increase in previous years to ensure full cost
recovery, but the cost of maintaining the greens has reduced since Idverde took over the
contract in February 2017, so there is scope to reduce fees and still recover full costs.
Biodiversity (Appendix F)
4.7

Charges are remaining, in the main, at 17/18 levels. The exceptions are those that generate the
most income, such as school sessions at the Ecology Centre and drop in session, which have
risen by £5 per session and £0.50, respectively. The estimated income for all sessions, including
those that have a slight rise, is sufficient to cover the costs of the Biodiversity Education Officer.
Sutton Life Centre (Appendix G)

4.8

The fees and charges at Sutton Life Centre have been amended to increase prices across all
areas other than Life Skills Tours. By maintaining the prices of the Life Skills Tours, it is
anticipated that this will generate additional income of £2k-£4k over the coming year by
attracting new schools to the centre. It is anticipated that the increase in prices across all other
areas of the business will generate income above inflation of £4k-£6k in order to further support
the achievement of income targets.
Libraries, Heritage & Art Services (Appendix H)

4.9

Fees and charges have not risen for the last three years. Following a review and comparison
with neighbouring Authorities the conclusion has been that Library and Heritage fines are on the
high side. The charging structure for the service is also more complicated than some others.
The rationale for the proposed new fees and charges table has been to provide an easy to
understand charging structure that enables the service to meet income targets and make it
more transparent for the public.
Libraries, Heritage & Art services are proposing to raise fees and fines for adult customers but
capping the amount charged and adding a single administration fee rather than a fee plus
postage, and abolishing fines for children. The recent increase in online services however and
new self service machines serve to help customers to avoid incurring fines. The room hire
charges have fallen far behind and the service needs to strike a balance between community

Agenda Item 9

Page 62

groups who rely on venues such as library meeting spaces to carry out their functions and those
who are making a profit from their endeavours such as small businesses and commercial
organisations. Therefore a tiered approach is being proposed to give the service more flexibility
and improve income streams back from valuable meeting spaces. £25 per hour is in line with
neighbouring Authority charges. Additionally, as a result of current investment in better
technology and the refurbishment of the Central Library, a more flexible service and better
facilties will be available, making room hire more attractive to local businesses as well as other
customers.
Printing costs across the service have been inconsistent and confusing for the public. The
service will use one machine for both printing and photocopying therefore it does not make
sense to have two different charges.
Regulatory Services (Appendix I)
4.10 Regulatory Services covers the following functions: Food Safety, Health and Safety, Trading
Standards, Private Sector Housing including a Home Improvement Agency, Pollution Control,
Licensing and Environmental Enforcement.
Licensing and regulatory fees have been reviewed in light of the Hemmings Supreme Court
Ruling which confirmed that licence fees should comprise not only a sum to cover the
administrative cost of issuing the licence but also a sum representing the cost to the licensing
authority of regulating and enforcing the licensing scheme.
A number of new fees are being introduced across a number of different service areas for
discretionary services previously provided free of charge. Examples of services where charges
have been introduced are for inspections under the Food Hygiene Rating Scheme, providing
business advice to customers, copies of HMO registers and weights and measures visits.
An inflationary increase has been applied to other fees and charges where appropriate.
Shared Highways and Transport (Appendix J)
4.11 The fees and charges for the Highways and Transport Service (as part of the Shared
Environment Service with Kingston) have been reviewed to ensure full cost recovery and cover
inflation and now includes Street Works Statutory Charges.
The highways licence fees and charges have been reviewed for process harmonisation and
administrative streamlining as part of the Shared Environment Service with Kingston.
With regard to the charges for third parties to work on the highway and for the agreement of
adoption of highways (Appendix J headings S278 and S38 of the Highways Act respectively) it
should be noted that it is rare that the £4,000 minimum charge is invoked. In most cases the
percentage fees are charged, so it was felt there was no need to change the minimum charge.

Page 63

Agenda Item 9

5.

Options Considered

5.1

An annual review was carried out across all services and has resulted in proposed increases of
varying amounts to individual services. In reviewing these charges the options considered was
to 1) not increase charges 2) increase by inflation only and 3) increase above inflation.

6.

Impacts and Implications
Financial

6.1

The proposed fees and charges are predominantly in line with inflation (2%). Where fees and
charges are above the rate of inflation this will assist the Services to achieve existing income
targets and cover their costs.
Legal

6.2

The report proposes changes to the Council’s existing charges and fees. Under the Constitution
the Council’s charges and fees should be reviewed annually and any proposals for increasing
fees above inflation or for introducing new charges need approval by the relevant committee.

6.3

The Council has various powers to impose charges under specific legislation relating to
particular services either on a cost recovery basis or otherwise. For example, licensing fees fall
within three different categories:
●
●
●

Fees which are set by statute and cannot be amended by individual local authorities;
Fees which are set locally to cover the cost of administering/managing the regime
Fees which are set locally but are subject to a cap/maximum limit imposed by statute.

6.4

Fees which can be set locally allow a local authority to determine fees to enable it to recover its
reasonable cost in carrying out its licensing functions. In these circumstances the local authority
needs to consider the effect of European legislation which requires the fee to be proportionate to
the cost of the procedures and formalities and must not exceed the cost of those procedures
and formalities

6.5

The Council also has general power under section 93 of the Local Government Act 2003 (“LGA
2003”) to charge a person for discretionary services that is the provision of a service where the
Council is authorised but not required to provide the service and the person has agreed to its
provision. The power applies where there is no other specific statutory power that covers the
proposed charge. The income from charges for a service should not exceed the costs of
providing the service. Charges may be set differently so that users are charged different
amounts.

6.6

The Council has power under section 1 of the Localism Act 2011 to do anything that individuals
generally may do, subject to specified restrictions and limitations imposed by other statutes. The
general power of competence extends to charging for services, but limits on charging are

Page 64

Agenda Item 9

imposed by the Localism Act 2011. The Council may only charge for a service under the general
power of competence if: (a) it is a discretionary service; (b) the person agrees to the service
being provided; and (c) there is no other power to charge for the service, including in section 93
of the LGA 2003. Taking one financial year with another, the income from charges must not
exceed the costs of providing the service.
6.7

Following the coming into force in December 2009 of the Provision of Services Regulation 2009
(SI2009/2999), giving effect domestically to EU Directive 2006/123/EC, and the various
judgments in the Hemming and Others v Westminster City Council cases, a Council can
legitimately levy licence fees which can be set locally from licence holders of a sum to cover the
administrative cost of issuing the licence, but also a sum representing the licensees' share of
the cost to the licensing authority of regulating and enforcing the licensing scheme in question.
A Council is not entitled to levy enforcement costs in an application, so the Applications for
licences are made on the basis that the applicant must pay: (i) on making the application, the
costs of the authorisation procedures and formalities, and (ii) on the application being
successful, a further fee to cover the costs of the running and enforcement of the licensing
scheme. The Hemming and Others v Westminster City Council cases also determined that
licence fees set by a local authority must be determined by a committee or officer with duly
delegated authority to do so. When setting such a fee, local authorities must carry forward both
surpluses and deficits. Local authorities must ring-fence the fees and not make a profit from that
scheme.

7.

Appendices and Background Documents
Appendix letter

Title

A

Bulky Waste – Proposed 2018/19

B

Trade Waste - Proposed 2018/19

C

Registration Services – Proposed 2018/19

D

Sports & Leisure Management – Proposed 2018/19

E

Parks & Cemeteries - Proposed 2018/19

F

Biodiversity – Proposed 2018/19

G

Life Centre – Proposed 2018/19

H

Libraries, Heritage & Art Services – Proposed 2018/19

Page 65

Agenda Item 9

I

Regulatory Services - Proposed 2018/19

J

Shared Highways and Transport - Proposed 2018/19

Background Documents
None

Audit Trail
Version

Final

Date: 16 January 2018

Finance

Yes

Neilesh Kakad/Sue Hogg

Legal

Yes

Fiona Thomsen/Guy
Bishop

Equality Impact Assessment
required?

No

N/A

Consultation with other officers

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 67

Agenda Item 9

Appendix A

Bulky Waste (Including Fridges) - Fees and Charges
No of Items

Current Fee

Proposed Fee 2018/19

1-3 Items

£30.00

£30.50

4-6 Items

£50

£51.00

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 69

Agenda Item 9

Appendix B

Trade Waste
Service

Current Fee

Proposed Fee
2018/19

Trade Heavy
1280 Euro
1100 Euro
940 Cham/Pal
660 Euro
360 Wheelie Bin
240 Wheelie Bin
Blue Sacks 52 Litre
Blue Sacks 26 Litre

£36.00
£34.00
£32.00
£28.00
£24.00
£16.00
£6.00
£3.10

£37.00
£35.00
£33.00
£29.00
£24.50
£16.50
£6.10
£3.20

£27.00
£25.00
£24.00
£21.00
£18.00
£13.00
£5.00
£3.00

£27.50
£25.50
£24.50
£21.50
£18.50
£13.50
£5.10
£3.10

£13.50
£13.00
£11.50
£11.00
£9.00
£6.00
£2.00

£14.00
£13.50
£12.00
£11.50
£9.20
£6.10
£2.10

£13.50
£13.00
£11.50
£11.00
£9.00
£6.00
£2.00

£14.00
£13.50
£12.00
£11.50
£9.20
£6.10
£2.10

£4.60
£4.60
£4.60
£4.60

£4.70
£4.70
£4.70
£4.70

Trade Light
1280 Euro
1100 Euro
940 Cham/Pal
660 Euro
360 Wheelie Bin
240 Wheelie Bin
Blue Sacks 52 Litre
Blue Sacks 26 Litre

Collection Only
1280 Euro
1100 Euro
940 Cham/Pal
660 Euro
360 Wheelie Bin
240 Wheelie Bin
Blue Sacks 52 Litre

Charities
1280 Euro
1100 Euro
940 Cham/Pal
660 Euro
360 Wheelie Bin
240 Wheelie Bin
Blue Sacks 52 Litre

Domestic (Hire Only)
1280 Euro
1100 Euro
940 Cham/Pal
660 Euro

Agenda Item 9

Page 70

Recycling
1280 Euro
1100 Euro
940 Cham/Pal
660 Euro
360 Wheelie Bin
240 Wheelie Bin
Blue Sacks 52 Litre
Blue Sacks 26 Litre

£13.50
£13.00
£11.50
£11.00
£9.00
£6.00
£2.00
£2.00

£14.00
£13.50
£12.00
£11.50
£9.20
£6.10
£2.10
£2.10

Page 71

Agenda Item 9

Appendix C

Registration Service - Fees and Charges
Service

Current Fee

Proposed Fee 2018/19

Adult

£65

£65

Child

£50

£50

Joint Naturalisation and
Passport checking service
Adult

£80

£80

Joint Naturalisation and
Passport checking service
Adult

£65

£65

European Passport Return
Service

£20

£20

£25

£30

Mon-Thurs

£280

£350

Fri

£280

£365

Sat

£360

£410

Sun/Bank Holiday

£410

£470

Nationality Checking Service

Booking fee for all ceremonies

Marriage Service (Outside Venue)

Marriage Service (In House - Non Statutory Rooms)
Mon-Thur Drawing Room

£170

£180

-

£380

Friday Drawing Room

£170

£205

Friday Garden Room

-

£400

£200

£230

Mon-thur Garden Room

Sat Drawing Room

Agenda Item 9

Sat Garden Room

Page 72

-

£425

£365

£415

Sun Garden Room

-

£500

Ceremony Drawing Room
with garden reception

-

£475

Ceremony Garden room with
garden reception

-

£575

Sun Drawing Room

Baby Naming/Renewal of Vows (Outside Venue)
Mon-Thurs

£280

£350

Fri

£280

£365

Sat

£360

£410

Sun/BH O/V

£410

£470

Baby Naming/Renewal of Vows (In house - Non Statutory Rooms)
Mon-Thurs Drawing Room
Mon-thur Garden room
Fri Drawing Room
Friday Garden Room
Sat Drawing Room

£170

£180

-

£380

£170

£205

-

£400

£200

£230

Sat Garden Room
Sun/BH O/V Drawing Room

£425
£365

Sun Garden Room

£415
£500

Ceremony Drawing Room
with garden reception

-

£475

Ceremony Garden room with
garden reception

-

£575

Page 73

Agenda Item 9

Conference rate not including Catering
Deposit for conferences

-

£50

Full day

-

£300

Half day

-

£150

Hourly rate

-

£50

Delegate Rate

-

£25

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 75

Agenda Item 9

Appendix D

Sports and Leisure Management - Fees and Charges
(These charges set by SLM)
Leisure
Management

NON MEMBERS
MEMBERS
Current
Fee

Proposed Fee
2018/19

Current Fee

Proposed Fee
2018/19

Pay & Play
Adult in
borough

£34.00

£35.00

N/A

N/A

Pay & Play
Adult Out of
Borough

£55.00

£56.65

N/A

N/A

Pay & Play
Junior

£12.50

£13.00

N/A

N/A

Pay and Play
Concession

£12.50

£13.00

N/A

N/A

1-1
Consultation
Adult Basic

£33.00

£34.00

N/A

N/A

1-1
Consultation
Adult
Concession

£14.00

£14.50

N/A

N/A

£42.00

£43.25

N/A

N/A

RPIX 1.9%
Pay & Play
Memberships

Inductions

Pre-Paid
Adult Joining
Fee

Page 76

Agenda Item 9

Junior Joining
Fee

£21.00

£21.65

N/A

N/A

Adult Annual

£439.50

£453.00

N/A

N/A

Monthly DD

£43.95

£45.30

N/A

N/A

Junior DD
single site

£14.20

£14.65

N/A

N/A

Concessionary
Off Peak
Annual

£320.00

£330.00

N/A

N/A

Concessionary
DD Off Peak

£32.00

£33.00

N/A

N/A

Play world

£3.10

£3.20

£4.65

£4.80

Play world
Concession

£2.50

£2.60

N/A

N/A

Adult Swim

£3.50

£3.60

£4.85

£5.00

Junior Swim

£1.00

£1.00

£2.75

£2.85

Under 16's
non-member
swim and Over
60's out of
borough

£2.55

£2.65

£4.85

£5.05

Casual Gym
Peak

£6.05

£6.25

N/A

N/A

Casual Gym
Peak Conc

£5.75

£5.95

N/A

N/A

Casual Gym Off
Peak

£5.75

£5.95

N/A

N/A

Concession
Gym off peak

£4.50

£4.65

N/A

N/A

Swimming

Page 77

Agenda Item 9

Group
Exercise
Group Exercise
Class Standard

£5.85

£6.05

£7.35

£7.60

Concession
Group Exercise
Class

£5.20

£5.35

N/A

N/A

Racquets Jnr
Peak

£12.55

£13.00

£16.05

£16.60

Racquets Jnr
Peak
Concession

£8.75

£8.90

N/A

N/A

Racquets Jnr
Off Peak
Concession

£4.55

£4.60

N/A

N/A

Racquets Jnr
Off Peak

£6.90

£7.00

£8.95

£9.10

Crèche (Junior)

£1.60

£1.65

£1.60

£1.65

Crèche
Concess
(Junior)

£1.60

£1.65

£1.60

£1.65

Adult Racquet
peak

£12.70

£13.10

£16.10

£16.60

Adult Racquet
Off Peak

£7.15

£7.35

£9.00

£9.25

Concession
Racquet

£8.90

£9.10

N/A

N/A

Concession
Racquet Off
Peak

£4.70

£4.80

N/A

N/A

Racquets Badminton

Agenda Item 9

Page 78

Page 79

Agenda Item 9

Appendix E

Park Sports - Fees and Charges
Current Fee

Proposed Fee
2018/19

£89.00

£91.00

Adult - Block booking (excluding VAT

£74.00

£75.00

Youth Team/senior school(ages 14 -18) (including
VAT)

£61.00

£62.00

Youth Team/senior school block bookings
(excluding VAT)

£51.00

£52.00

Junior Clubs and primary schools (aged under 12
)(including VAT)

£61.00

£62.00

Junior Clubs and primary schools block bookings
(excluding VAT)

£51.00

£52.00

Adult casual hire (including VAT)

£95.00

£99.00

Adult - block booking (excluding VAT)

£80.75

£83.00

Ages 12 -18 casual (including VAT)

£54.00

£55.00

Ages 12 - 18 block bookings (excl. VAT)

£45.00

£46.00

9 v 9 ages 10 - 11 (including VAT)

£27.00

£28.00

9 v 9 ages 10 - 11 (excl. VAT) block

£23.00

£24.00

Park Sports
Grass pitches for Rugby, Hockey, Hurling,
Korfball Pitches
Prices per pitch, per game including free use of
showers and changing rooms (where available)

Adult casual hire (including VAT)

Grass pitches for football
Prices per pitch, per game including free use of
showers and changing rooms

Agenda Item 9

Page 80

Little League per game, 3 games per pitch (incl.
VAT)

£60.00

£62.00

Little League per game, 3 games per pitch (excl.
VAT)

£51.00

£52.00

Mini-soccer aged under 10s (including VAT)

£27.00

£28.00

Mini-soccer aged under 10s (excluding VAT)

£23.00

£24.00

Annual pitch hire Little Leagues - facility fully
provided by the Council NEW

£1224.00

£1250.00

Annual pitch hire 9 v 9 and mini pitches - facility
fully provided by the Council NEW

£612.00

£625.00

Annual pitch hire Little Leagues - club responsible
for marking out the pitches NEW

£571.20

£585.00

Annual pitch hire 9 v 9 and mini pitches - club
responsible for marking out the pitches NEW

£220.32

£225.00

£107.00

£109.00

£89.16

£91.00

£107.00

£109.00

£89.16

£91.00

£107.00

£109.00

£89.16

£91.00

Bank Holiday half day (including VAT)

£144.00

£147.00

Bank Holiday full day (including VAT)

£195.00

£199.00

Baseball Pitches and Cricket All Weather Strip
Price per pitch per game including free use of
showers and changing rooms
Adult - all day casual hire (including VAT)
Adult - all day block bookings (excluding VAT)
Adult - half day casual hire (including VAT)
Adult - half day block bookings (excluding VAT)
School Team/Junior/U/18's casual hire (including
VAT)
School Team/Junior/U/18's Block bookings
(excluding VAT)

Page 81

Agenda Item 9

Keys and Access
Changing rooms and pitch - key purchase

£20.40

£20.00

Temporary vehicular access to park per day (up to
a maximum of 3 days) (excluding VAT)

£56.10

£57.00

£185.00

TBC

Public play per player per hour (Charge made and
retained by clubs) Under 18s free when
accompanied by an adult.

£4.60

£4.70

Discounted annual membership for students and
under 18s

£22.40

£22.90

Full price (Charge a square metre)

£0.31

£0.31

Concessions rate (Charge a square metre)

£0.23

£0.23

Charge for supply of water (Charge a square metre)

£0.06

£0.06

Bowls Charges
Charge for each club member (non-lease clubs
only)

(NB There will be no charge for up to 2 under 18s
where there are 2 full members in the same family)
Allotments Charges (excluding VAT)

Agenda Item 9

Page 82

Park Events - Fees and Charges
Park Events

Current
Fee

Proposed Fee
2018/19

Monday to Thursday, first 2 hours
including insurance premium

£23.50

£24.00

Friday, Saturday and Sunday, first 2 hours
including insurance premium

£28.50

£29.00

All days charge per hour after first 2 hours

£11.70

£12.00

All days charge, first 2 hours charge
including insurance premium

£44.00

£45.00

All days charge per hour after first 2 hours

£11.70

£12.00

Charges for Pavilion Hire (Excluding
Changing Rooms) excluding VAT
Minimum hire 2 hours
All bookings are subject to a £5.00 charge
to cover users for public liability insurance
purposes.
The insurance premium is included in the
first 2 hours hire charge.

Charges for Hire of Changing Rooms
only excluding VAT
Minimum hire 2 hours
All bookings are subject to a £5.00 charge
to cover users for public liability insurance
purposes.
The insurance premium is included in the
first 2 hours hire charge.

Page 83

Agenda Item 9

Sponsorship of trees (standard VAT -if
co advertising, excluding VAT if
anonymous donation)
Supply and planting of a standard tree
(park or verge)

£250.00

£295.00

Supply and planting of a baby tree (known
as a whip and approx. 1 metre tall) within
park woodland or mass planting

£10.70

£10.90

Supply and planting of 1000 crocus
bulbs(park or verge)

£63.00

£64.00

Supply and planting of 1000 narcissus
bulbs(park or verge)

£117.00

£119.00

Supply and planting of an ornamental rose
bush in a park bed

£13.80

£14.00

Funfairs, Circuses, Concerts per operating
day

£960.00

£980.00

Funfairs, Circuses, Concerts per
non-operating day

£320.00

£325.00

Event attracting more than 100 people
with admission charge for the public (e.g.
carnival, sale, village fete)

£460.00

£470.00

Event attracting more than 100 people
with free admission (e.g. carnival or
church /village fete and charitable events)

£230.00

£235.00

Small Event up to 100 people (e.g..
sponsored walk or orienteering)

£120.00

£125.00

Special Event Charges excluding VAT
Charges for Funfairs, Circuses and
Concerts are by negotiation, but the
following minimum charges apply.

Agenda Item 9

Page 84

Mini event less than 30 people (e.g.
sponsored walk, charity fundraising sale or
similar)

£36.00

£37.00

Car Boot Sale (any size)

£445.00

£455.00

School Sports Days (per hour)

£32.00

£33.00

Hire of Oaks Park campsite per booking

£35.00

£36.00

Commercial fitness group activity per
session where a charge is made to
participants (max. 25 people)

£27.00

£28.00

Commercial fitness group activity per year
(maximum 25 people, up to one class per
week) REVISED

£265.00

£270.00

Commercial fitness group activity per year
(maximum 25 people, more than one class
per week) NEW

£360.00

£365.00

Funfairs, Circuses, Concerts

£630.00

£640.00

Large Event with or without admission
charge for the public

£470.00

£480.00

Small Event (e.g.. sponsored walk or
orienteering)

£320.00

£325.00

Car Boot Sale

£630.00

£640.00

Special Event Returnable Deposits
excluding VAT

Page 85

Agenda Item 9

Cemeteries - Fees and Charges

Current Fee

Proposed
Fee 2018/19

New grave - class A front row or near chapel

£2705.00

£2760.00

New grave - class B inside row

£1835.00

£1870.00

East Border Front Row (new category)

£3520.00

£3590.00

Reclaimed grave for burial- any class

£960.00

£980.00

Baby grave

£465.00

£475.00

£1240.00

£1265.00

Reclaimed grave for cremated remains

£520.00

£530.00

Purchase of extra years - 50 years

*pro rata

*pro rata

Purchase of extra years - 25 years

*pro rata

*pro rata

£99.00

£101.00

Coffin burial - depth for 1 or 2

£1110.00

£1130.00

Coffin burial - depth for 3

£1275.00

£1300.00

Coffin burial - depth for 4

£1620.00

£1650.00

Casket burial - depth 1

£1355.00

£1380.00

Casket burial - depth 2

£1510.00

£1540.00

CEMETERIES
1. Purchase of Burial Rights (50 Years) exempt
of VAT

Cremated remains grave

Purchase of grave for future use add 25%
surcharge*
Transfer and re-registration of burial rights
Non-residents' fees and charges are double that for
residents, for all categories of purchase of burial
rights.
2. Cost of Burial (private or public grave space)
exempt of VAT

Agenda Item 9

Page 86

Casket burial - depth 3

£1865.00

£1900.00

Coffin burial for child – 16 or under any depth

£470.00

£480.00

Public grave burial - adult

£950.00

£970.00

Public grave burial - child 16 or under

£470.00

£480.00

Cremated remains burial at shallow depth

£325.00

£330.00

Wooden shoring for grave backfill by public - depth
for 1 or 2

£285.00

£290.00

Wooden shoring for grave backfill by public - depth
for 3 or 4

£380.00

£390.00

Use of cemetery chapel for Sutton cemetery
funeral service for maximum 30 mins

£135.00

£140.00

Use of cemetery chapel - longer service/ service
over run per 30 mins

£135.00

£140.00

Use of cemetery chapel for other cemetery funeral
service.

£265.00

£270.00

Full kerb type memorial - including one inscription

£275.00

£280.00

Headstone type - including one inscription

£220.00

£225.00

Public grave tablet memorial - including one
inscription

£128.00

£130.00

Each additional inscription or minor addition

£107.00

£109.00

To renovate, repair and/ or clean existing memorial
(Admin fee)

£23.50

£24.00

Non-residents' fees and charges are to be double
that for residents, for all the categories in this
section.
3. Cost of Memorial Permits exempt of VAT

4. Keeping the Grave Tidy Service including
VAT

Page 87

Annual grave maintenance - plants and keep tidy full grave

Agenda Item 9

£220.00

£225.00

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 89

Agenda Item 9

Appendix F

Biodiversity - Fees and Charges
Service

Current
Fee

Proposed Fee
2018/19

Up to 15 children - 1 session

£120

£125

16-35 children - 1 session

£170

£175

£85

£85

£150

£150

Drop in session

£4

£4.50

Bookable session

£5

£5.50

£5.50

£5.50

Biodiversity Study Days

£20

£20

Winter Wreaths

£16

£18

£60

£60

£22.50

£22.50

£85

£85

Teaching sessions at Sutton Ecology Centre

DIY Session
Teaching sessions at other nature reserves
Up to 35 children - 1 session
Family Activities (Per Person)

Guided walks
Adult

Third Party charges
Grounds hire (per day)
Classroom hire (per hour)
Birthday parties (DIY) -2 hour hire grounds &
classroom

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 91

Agenda Item 9

Appendix G

Sutton Life Centre - Fees and Charges
Hireable Spaces
(per hour)

Current Fee

Proposed Fee 2018/19

Single Meeting
Room

£26.50

£27.50

Double Meeting
Room

£41.00

£42.50

Triple Meeting
Room

£56.00

£58.00

Youth Room

£26.50

£27.50

IT Suite

£26.50

£27.50

The Transport

£26.50

£27.50

The Home

£35.00

£36.50

The 360 Room

£46.50

£48.00

360° Projection
(Additional charge
for use of 360°
projection)

N/A

*£75.00

The Street

£62.50

£65.00

Sports Pitch

Summer: £20.00
Winter: £40.00

**Tennis: £10.00
Football: £40.00

* The use of the 360° projection will be used as a unique addition for corporate events,

and it is hoped that this will encourage more corporate bookings.
** Currently the Sports Pitch is underused for Football during the summer months. As it is
useable as a Tennis Court in addition to a football pitch, we suggest a competitive hire
charge dependent on the use of the space to maximise income generating potential.

Agenda Item 9

Page 92

Hireable Spaces
(full day)

Current Fee

Proposed Fee 2018/19

Single Meeting
Room

£106.00

£110.00

Double Meeting
Room

£164.00

£170.00

Triple Meeting
Room

£224.00

£232.00

Youth Room

£106.00

£110.00

IT Suite

£106.00

£110.00

The Transport

£106.00

£110.00

The Home

£140.00

£146.00

The 360 Room

£186.00

£192.00

360° Projection
(Additional charge
for use of 360°
projection)

N/A

*£300.00

The Street

£250.00

£260.00

Sports Pitch

Summer: £80.00
Winter: £160.00

**Tennis: £40:00
Football: £160.00

* The use of the 360° projection will be used as a unique addition for corporate events,

and it is hoped that this will encourage more corporate bookings.
** Currently the Sports Pitch is underused for Football during the summer months. As it is
useable as a Tennis Court in addition to a football pitch, we suggest a competitive hire
charge dependent on the use of the space to maximise income generating potential.

Life Skills Tours
(cost per pupil)

Current Fee

Proposed Fee 2017/18

Sutton State
Schools

£4.60

£4.60

Page 93

Agenda Item 9

Other State
Schools

£7.65

£7.65

Independent
Schools

£9.20

£9.20

Workshops
(Optional Add
On)

£3.00

£3.50

As we are still building the business with the Life Skills Tours and encouraging new visitors, I
would advise maintaining the 201718 prices in order to build our customer base further.

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 95

Agenda Item 9

Appendix H

Libraries, Heritage & Arts Services - Fees and Charges
Service

Current Fee

Proposed Fee 2018/19

Fines: Adult (aged
16 and above)

25p per item per day (first
week)
30p per item per day (for
subsequent weeks)

35p per day from day 1 with
a maximum of £15

Fines: Children
(aged 5 and above)

10p per item per day

Abolish charges for
children up to the age of 16

Postage charge for
overdue notices

2nd class postage plus
50p

Consolidate into one admin
fee of £2 per notice for
adults only

Reservations

£1.30 per item in stock
£4 per item not in stock

£1.50 per item in stock in
the LLC
£5 not in stock
Self reserved on the web
and in stock 50p

British Library
loans

£13 per item

£15 per item

Audio books

As marked

As marked

Picture hire

£1.30 per month/£6 six
months

We no longer hire pictures

A4 50p
A3 60p

A4 50p
A3 60p

£3 (over 15s)
£1 (under 15s)

£3 (over 15s)
£1 (under 15s)

£1 per hour

£1 per hour

Black & white 20p
Colour £1.20

B & W 10p
Colour £1

Reader printer
(Local Studies &
Archives)
Lost tickets

Use of PCs (after
one free hour per
day
PC printing (per
page) A4

Agenda Item 9

Photocopying

Page 96

A4 black & white 10p,
colour £1
A3 black & white 20p,
colour £2

No change to black A4
prices
A3 black and white 30p
Colour £2

Room hire:
(exclusive of
facilities)

Currently one level of fees
£12ph

In order to retain flexibility
we will include the
following wording. We
reserve the right to vary the
hire charges according to
customer requirements and
the facilities offered.

Business rate

-

£25 per hour

Commercial rate

-

£50 per hour

Community
groups

-

50% discount on the £25
business rate.

Events &
activities: Children
& Adult

-

Ranging from £2.50 - £25

Page 97

Agenda Item 9

Appendix I

Regulatory Services (General Licences) - Fees and Charges
General Licence Fees

Current
Fee

Proposed Fee
2018/19

Commercial Animal Boarding Establishment:
Application

£272

£480

Commercial Animal Boarding Establishment:
Renewal

£272

£400

Domestic Animal Boarding Establishment:
Application

£130

£310

Domestic Animal Boarding Establishment: Renewal

£130

£270

Breeding of Dogs: Application

£284

£610

Breeding of Dogs: Renewal

£284

£610

Dangerous Wild Animals: Application

£379

£700

Dangerous Wild Animals: Renewal

£379

£700

Pet Shops: Application

£335

£480

Pet Shops: Renewal

£335

£400

Riding Establishments (under 20 horses)
Application

£506

£700

Riding Establishments (under 20 horses): Renewal

£506

£700

Riding Establishments (over 20 horses) Application

£506

£830

Riding Establishments (over 20 horses) Renewal

£506

£830

Animals

Agenda Item 9

Page 98

Performing Animals

£277

£290

Zoo (six year license)

£615

£9,000

New Application - High Risk Premises

£449

£670

Annual Renewal - High Risk Premises

£337

£570

New Application - Medium Risk Premises

£449

£500

Annual Renewal - Medium Risk Premises

£337

£340

New Application - Low Risk Premises

£449

£285

Annual Renewal - Low Risk Premises

£337

£200

£52

£140

Amendment to plan of premises

No Fee

£140

Transfer of Licence

No Fee

£270

One off event of a temporary nature

No Fee

£230

Replacement licence following loss or theft etc

No Fee

£50

£183.50

£183.50

Sutton High Street - per pitch per day, minimum 3
days per week

£10.50

£10.50

Sutton High Street - Temporary licence, minimum
3 days per week

£7.50

£7.50

Special Treatment Premises

Variation of licence to add treatment in same or
lower group

Annual Street Trading Licences
Woodmansterne Lane - Designated Pitches

Speciality Markets – Temporary Street Trading per week
Up to 10 stalls

£357

£364

11 to 20 stalls

£612

£625

21 to 30 stalls

£867

£884

Page 99

Agenda Item 9

31 to 40 stalls

£1122

£1144

Over 41 stalls

£1377

£1405

Each subsequent week

£357

£364

Temporary Street Trading Licences (up to 6 months)
Single day street trading licence

£38

£38

Casual Traders Sutton Market (per pitch per day
Mon – Fri)

£24

£24

Casual Traders Sutton Market (per pitch per day
Sat – Sun)

£34

£34

Food Traders Sutton Market (2 days or less per
week)

£245

£245

Food Traders Sutton Market (more than 2 days a
week)

£490

£490

Pavement Café – Sutton High Street – up to 3 sq.
metres

£612

£624

Pavement Café – Sutton High Street – over 3 and
up to 6 sq. metres

£714

£728

Pavement Café – Sutton High Street – over 6 and
up to 8 sq. metres

£816

£832

Pavement Café – Sutton High Street over 8 sq.
metres

£918

£936

Pro Rata licence (maximum of 3 days per week)

£211

£211

Shopfront licence (not Sutton High Street)

£125

£127

Buskers selling recordings of their own work (3
months licence)

£67

£68

Trading in cars on the Highway for more than 2
days a weeks

£239

£244

£700

£714

Scrap Metal Dealers
New application - Site Licence

Agenda Item 9

Page 100

Variation application - Site licence

£77

£79

Renewal application - Site Licence

£648

£661

New application - Collector Licence

£440

£449

Variation application - Collector licence

£77

£79

Renewal application - Collector Licence

£388

£396

Premises licence for up to 500 people (3 year
licence)

£630

£630

Premises licence for over 500 people (3 year
licence)

£750

£750

High Hedges

£395

£403

Immigration Inspections

£170

£180

Mandatory HMO New Licences per letting unit

£190

£240

Mandatory HMO Renewal per letting unit

£190

£200

No Fee

£300

Administration fee for housing grants

£205

£300

Housing Act 2004 Enforcement Notice Charge

£400

£450

No Fee

£20

£125

£125

No Fee

7.5%

15%

Up to 20%

Marriage Licence

Private Sector Housing

Assistance to complete HMO application form

Fee for copy of HMO register
Stray Dogs
Home Improvement Agency
Basic Client Service fee % of cost of the works
All Grants
Full Client Service fee % of cost of the works
Disabled Facilities Grants

Page 101

Agenda Item 9

All other grants

15%

Up to 15%

Private works without grant aid

15%

Up to 17.5%

£100 £1500

£100 - £1500

Residential Contaminated Land Enquiry

£110

£112

Commercial Contaminated Land Enquiry

£160

£163

£10.50

£12

£400

£400

£112

£114

Registration Fee for Mail Forwarding Businesses

No fee

£150

Weights and Measures Verification

No Fee

£70 per hour

Food Health Certificates

No Fee

£50

Food Hygiene Re-rating Inspections

No Fee

£160

Copy Food Registration Form for Home Office
Verification

No Fee

£50

No Fee

£70 per hour

Fees for aborted works(depends on stage of the
grant and the cost of the works)
Pollution Control

Commercial Clinical Waste Collection per item
Environmental Enforcement
Fixed Penalty Notice for Fly Tipping
Trading Standards
Sutton Safer Trader Scheme

Food Safety

All Services
Business Advice

Agenda Item 9

Page 102

Regulatory Services (Gambling Act 2005) - Fees and Charges
Type of Licence

Current
Fee

Proposed
Fee 2018/19

Provisional Statement

£2000

£2000

Licence application (Provisional Statement Holder)

£1200

£1200

New Application

£2000

£2000

Annual fee

£1000

£1000

Variation

£1000

£1000

Transfer

£950

£950

Reinstatement

£950

£950

Provisional Statement

£3000

£3000

Licence application (Provisional Statement Holder)

£1200

£1200

New Application

£3000

£3000

Annual Fee

£600

£600

Variation

£1500

£1500

Transfer

£1000

£1000

Reinstatement

£1000

£1000

Provisional Statement

£3500

£3500

Licence application (Provisional Statement Holder)

£1200

£1200

New Application

£3500

£3500

Annual Fee

£1000

£1000

Variation

£1750

£1750

Adult Gaming Centre Premises Licence

Betting (Other) Premises Licence

Bingo Premises Licence

Page 103

Agenda Item 9

Transfer

£1000

£1000

Reinstatement

£1000

£1000

Provisional Statement

£2000

£2000

Licence application (Provisional Statement Holder)

£950

£950

New Application

£2000

£2000

Annual fee

£750

£750

Variation

£1000

£1000

Transfer

£950

£950

Reinstatement

£950

£950

Change of Circumstances

£50

£50

Copy of a Licence

£25

£25

£500

£500

£25

£25

£50

£50

Application

£150

£150

Annual Fee

£50

£50

Variation

£100

£100

Transfer

£25

£25

Change of Name

£25

£25

Family Entertainment Centre Premises Licence

General Fees

Temporary Use Notices
Replacement of enforced copy of a notice
Permits
Alcohol Licensed Premises Notification
Notification of intention by licence holder to make
available up to 2 gaming machines
Alcohol Licensed Premises Gaming Machine Permits

Agenda Item 9

Page 104

Copy of gaming machine permit

£15

£15

Application

£200

£200

Application(Club Premises Certificate Holder)

£100

£100

£50

£50

Variation

£100

£100

Renewal

£200

£200

Renewal (Club Premises Certificate Holder)

£100

£100

£15

£15

Application

£300

£300

Renewal

£300

£300

Change of Name

£25

£25

Copy of permit

£15

£15

Application

£300

£300

Renewal

£300

£300

Change of Name

£25

£25

Copy of Permit

£15

£15

Application for Registration

£40

£40

Annual fee

£20

£20

Club Gaming or Club Machine Permits

Annual fee

Copy of Permit
Family Entertainment Centre Gaming Machine Permit

Prize Gaming Permits

Small Societies Lottery Registration

Page 105

Agenda Item 9

Appendix J

Shared Highways and Transport - Fees and Charges

SERVICE

Current
Fee

Proposed Fee
2018/19

Skip Licence (Revised from 14 days to 28 days)

£60

£120

Skip Licence renewal (No renewal option. New
application to be made as above for further 28 days if
required)

£45

N/A

Building Materials Licence (Revised from 14 days to
28 days)

£60

£120

Building Materials License renewal (No renewal
option. New application to be made as above for
further 28 days if required)

£45

N/A

£235

£269
(additional
£400 deposit)

£235

£250
(additional
£400 deposit)

£145

£250
(additional
£400 deposit)

Application - includes admin charges plus three
inspections (Plus variable supervision fee and
refundable deposit ranging from £1000 to £3500
returnable after an 18 month to 2 year period, also
dependent on excavation depth and extent)

£495

£675

Vehicle Crossing Application ( non-refundable)

£100

£120

Search Enquiries - Single letter single point reply

£70

£80

Scaffolding/ Hoarding Licence (licences valid per 28
days)

Mobile Crane - Allowed three operations per licence in
any 28 days for up to 3 operations
Cherry Picker/Mobile Scaffolding - Allowed three
operations per licence in any 28 days for up to 3
operations
Road Opening Agreement - (Sec 50 NRSWA 1991)

Agenda Item 9

Page 106

Search Enquiries - Single letter multi point reply per
question (each question to be charged)

£70

£75

S14(1) Planned works

£1590

£1650

S14(2) emergency works

£795

£825

Traffic Orders Film Notice – 24hr duration

£795

£825

Traffic Orders Film Order 2 – 7 day duration

£1590

£1650

£795

£825

£2050

£2100

£65

£70

£4000
(9%)

£4000
(12%)

Agreement for Adoption of Highways (as a percentage
of construction costs with minimum fee shown)

£4000
(9%)

£4000
(12%)

Permission to carry Traffic Monitoring Survey on
Highway Network

£300

£350

Temporary Traffic Orders

Filming on Highways

Special Event Traffic Orders
(excluding Playing Out, Big Lunch, Remembrance
Sunday and Council initiatives)
Permanent Traffic Order Amendment
Parking bay relocation to accommodate dropped
crossing
Flood Risk Management
Ordinary watercourse consent’ fee per structure or
operation
S278 of Highways Act
Third party works on Highway (as a percentage of
construction costs with minimum fee shown)
S38 of Highways Act

Permit Fees - Statutory Charges (on roads
classified Type 1,2 & Traffic sensitive)
Major PAA (Provisional Advance Authorisations) 105

£105

Page 107

Agenda Item 9

Major Permit

119

£119

Standard

98

£98

Minor

65

£65

Immediate

53

£53

Permit Variation

45

£45

Major PAA (Provisional Advance Authorisations)

75

£75

Major Permit

118

£118

Standard

75

£75

Minor

45

£45

Immediate

40

£40

Permit Variation

35

£35

Permit Fees - Statutory Charges (on roads
classified Type 3,4 & Non Traffic Sensitive)

This page is intentionally left blank

